
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 
 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
JOHN VAJDA 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of September 1, 2015 City Council Meeting (page 4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 8) 

 Claims  $    33,663.28 
 Payroll   $      7,161.19 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      2,835.37 
 Other Claims  $      2,701.79 
 Total Claims     $    46,361.63 

 
4. Res No 09-15-15-61  – Receiving and Awarding Re-Bid for Historic Bridge Project (page 27) 

 
5. Res No 09-15-15-62 – Approving 2016 Preliminary Budget & Tax Levy (page 32) 

 
6. Salary Ranges (page 50) 

 
7. Council Salary) 
 
8. Personnel Policy Amendments (page 239) 
 
9. Closed Session – City Administrator Six Month Review 
 
10. Reports 

 
11. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  September 10, 2015 
 
Re:  Review of September 15, 2015 City Council Agenda 
 

 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: see attached consent agenda packet. 

a. Approve Minutes of September 1, 2015 City Council Meeting (page 4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 8) 

 Claims  $    33,663.28 
 Payroll   $      7,161.19 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      2,835.37 
 Other Claims  $      2,701.79 
 Total Claims     $    46,361.63 

 
4. Res No 09-15-15-61 – Receiving and Awarding Bid for Historic Bridge Project (page 27) 

Enclosed is a resolution accepting and awarding bids for the historic bridge project. 
 
5. Res No 09-15-15-62 – Approving 2016 Preliminary Budget & Tax Levy (page 32) 

Enclosed is the 3rd draft of the preliminary budget.  The last changes have been made, and this 
resolution sets the preliminary tax levy for 2016.  Reminder, once approved, the tax levy can only 
remain the same or decrease for the final 2016 certified levy. 
 

6. Staff Salary Ranges (page 50) 
Enclosed is the salary study completed earlier this year.  Discussion on this item will be used to 
bring a resolution to the October 6th meeting to make any desired changes. 
 

7. Council Salary 
It was suggested to visit this topic given 2016 is an election year and salary adjustments cannot 
happen during election years. 
 
 



8. Personnel Policy Amendments (page 239) 
Discussion will be held for recommendations on amendments to the personnel policy. 
 

9. Reports 
 

10. Closed Session – City Administrator Six Month Review 
The meeting will be closed to conduct the 6 month review of the City Administrator. 

 
11. Adjournment 



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 

 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, September 1, 2015 to order at 7:00 p.m.  
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors John Vajda, Doug Hammerseng, Ken Warpula, and 
Jim Zajicek.  Also present were Public Works Supervisor Scott Vogel, Accountant/Deputy Clerk 
Elizabeth Lindrud, and City Attorney Jay Squires.  Guests present included Pat Athmann, Martin 
Waters, and Lieutenant Steve Tait from the Hennepin County Sheriff’s Office. 
  
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Lindrud added an additional claim of $137.52 for the ATT&T Invoice, bringing claims to $136,591.81 
and total claims to $147,973.32. 
MOTION by Vajda to approve the consent agenda as amended, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

a. Approve Minutes of August 18, 2015 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $  136,591.81 
 Payroll   $      7,161.19 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      2,835.67 
 Other Claims  $      1,383.65  
 Total Claims     $  147,973.32 

c. Res No 09-01-15-15 – Accepting Donation from Hanover Lions 
d. Res No 09-01-15-56 – Approving Payment for 107th Ave NE Pay Request #1 
e. Res No 09-01-15-57 – Approving Payment for 9th Street NE Pay Request #1 

Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Citizen’s Forum: 

Martin Waters 
Waters came to ask Council if there were any budget considerations for Hanover’s 125th City 
Anniversary.  He stated it would tie in well with the annual Hanover Harvest Festival and had some 
initial ideas for events.  The Historical Society is making a documentary on the Historical Bridge that 
should be ready for viewing by next August.  He also suggested hosting a dinner to celebrate or have a 
large cake.  Also suggested was to hold some kind of event for the teenagers in the City on Friday night. 
 
Kaufmann stated that Council has been looking for someone to take the lead, all the organizations are 
willing to help out, but so far there is no one willing to take the lead role.  Council also stated that 2016 
preliminary budget is being discussed later in the agenda and they can further discuss adding funds.  
Waters stated he was thinking under $10,000 for an initial estimate. 
 
Public Hearings 
None 
 

4



Unfinished Business: 
 Ordinance 2015-05 – Amendments to Chapter 2 Related to Applicable Laws 
Squires stated this is the final version of the ordinance that was discussed at a previous meeting. 
MOTION by Vajda to approve Ordinance 2015-15, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
  
 Ordinance 2015-06 – Amendments to Chapter 8 Related to Sexual Offenders and Predators 
Squires stated that this amendment was patterned after other Minnesota City ordinances and establishes 
locational restrictions to sexual offenders, such as vicinity to schools and daycares.  Warpula asked if 
this is a rehabilitative measure, Squires said no, it is a protective device from the sexual predators.  
There was discussion around notification when a sexual offender moves to a new location.  Squires 
stated there isn’t a notification, but when a level 3 offender does move into a neighborhood people are 
aware. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve Ordinance 2015-16, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 2016 Preliminary Budget Draft #2 
Lindrud reviewed the 2nd draft of the 2016 Preliminary Budget.  There were not many changes; the 
Wright County estimated tax capacity did come in.  The tax rate went down, leaving more capacity to 
raise the tax levy while keeping the overall tax rate level.  The City is able to levy around $80,000 more 
this year and apply that to Street Capital.  The three main projects for 2016 will be a sidewalk extension 
from The Bridges of Hanover, a road project that could come in from $300,000 to $500,000, and the 
new Public Works Facility. 
 
Vajda asked if there is a line item for the 125th Anniversary celebration.  Lindrud stated one could be 
added, an amount of $7,500 was agreed upon.  Council agreed that they were comfortable with the 
budget if the overall tax rate was remaining level.  Hammerseng would like the estimated tax rate from 
the Wright County sent in the weekly update. 
 
New Business: 

Res No 09-01-15-58 – Approving Emergency Snowplowing Plan 
Vogel stated that this agreement is something that has been in practice previous winters; it is just a 
formalized agreement.  If there is a Winter Storm Warning the surrounding cities and the county work 
together to keep the roads clear for emergency vehicles.  Warpula inquired who pays for the cost, Vogel 
stated the City pays the wages, but that he tries to avoid incurring overtime by reducing the normal 
working hours if possible. 
MOTION by Vajda to approve Res No 09-01-15-58, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
 Res No 09-01-15-59 – Approving Change Order for Fire Hall Repairs 
Council inquired why there was an extra cost for the Fire Hall Repairs.  Vogel stated that the type of 
material needed was different than originally thought and the price difference is due to material type. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 09-01-15-59, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
 
 
 
 

5



 Res No 09-01-15-60 – Adopting 2015 Budget Amendment # 2 
Lindrud stated that the 2015 budget figures in the 2015 Budget Amendment #1 were incorrect and were 
actually the 2015 actuals.  This Amendment corrects that error. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve Res No 09-01-15-60, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Reports 
Vogel 

• Stated that he and Jason are keeping up on regular maintenance and mowing. 
• Troy will be out to finish the Esterly Oaks pond maintenance.  Vajda requested that he and the 

residents be notified when that will occur. 
 
Zajicek 

• Updated Park Board that the wood from the Historic Bridge cannot be used in the Band Shell.  
He stated that they would still like to move forward with the Band Shell and have discussed a 
donation plan. 

Lindrud stated that she researched the restrictions around fundraising on behalf of a City.  A separate 
committee or group made up of residents that are not employed by the City or are elected or 
appointed city officials can fundraise for the Band Shell.  Lindrud called the City of Buffalo’s Park 
Director, Lee Ryan.  Ryan stated that the orchestra had donated funds.  He also had helpful 
suggestions and stated that making the Band Shell as multi-functional as possible to help get the 
most use.  Also, he suggested using a fabric shade for a roof vs. a built roof to reduce construction 
costs.   

 
Vajda 

• Stated that he will be gone for the next 2 months meetings. 
 
Hammerseng 

• Stated that the Planning Commission meeting for the month was cancelled. 
• Stated he would like Lindrud to follow up with Tammy Omdahl to obtain Bond payment 

information for the new Public Works Building. 
 
Warpula 

• Stated that the EDA meeting was cancelled. 
• Stated he would like the boulevard along the new trail to keep being mowed.  Vogel stated he 

needed to talk with Three Rivers Park District, since they are now responsible for mowing that 
section. 

 
Squires 

• Stated that Cindy Nash will be working on the marijuana ordinance with the Planning 
Commission and that a public hearing will be held. 

 
Lindrud 

• Stated that she and Hagen met with City of Albertville’s Finance Director, Tina Lannes, for 
additional training resources.  While meeting with Tina, Lindrud and Hagen were also given a 
tour of the FYCC office.  Lindrud will be attending the STMA Open Streets to see how FYCC 
incorporates the local business donors into this event. 

• Put together a line item detail of the Park Board’s budget and actual costs are allocated. 

6



• Researched the restrictions and requirements as previously stated around fundraising for the 
Band Shell. 

 
Warpula inquired of items should come before Council before individual members ask Staff to take 
action, an example being the Marijuana and bathroom ordinances.  Council agreed that yes, any action 
item should be brought to a Council meeting before action is taken. 
 
Zajicek mentioned there is a large dog waste problem in the town and how can this be addressed.  
Possible solutions are additional articles or a separate flyer in the City newsletter or signs being posted 
in the ball fields that no dogs are allowed.  Lindrud agreed to look into current ordinances and research 
if fines and enforcement.  Vajda stated one of the ball players from Corcoran team dove for a ball and 
slide into dog waste and the player’s parents were upset. 
 
 
Kauffman 

• Reminded everyone that Hagen’s 360 review is due next week and to please take time to review. 
• Stated he would like to from a subcommittee to help formalize the review process with Hagen, 

since this is his first year.  Hammerseng agreed to be on the subcommittee with Kaufman. 
 
Adjournment: 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 8:06 pm, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
 
 

7



Payments

HANOVER 09/10/15 11:58 AM
Page 1

Current Period: September 2015

$33,663.28Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 09/15/15 PAY
Payment Posted

ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES  Refer 1271
Cash Payment $350.73Standard Trash 8/01/15-8/31/15E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos
Invoice G20001501544 8/31/2015

$350.73TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ADVANCED FIRST AID INC.  Refer 1279
Cash Payment $549.00Lifepak 500 lithium batteryE 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies
Invoice 0815-288 8/27/2015

$549.00TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CARDMEMBER SRVC (CENTRAL B  Refer 1278
Cash Payment $90.00Blue Card Training SubscriptionE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction
Invoice 8/25/2015

$90.00TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE  Refer 1258
Cash Payment $104.74August Support/WorkE 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 9/1/2015

$104.74TotalTransaction Date 9/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTERPOINT ENERGY  Refer 1273
Cash Payment $19.92Fire HallE 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 9/28/2015
Cash Payment $55.50City HallE 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 9/28/2015

$75.42TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTURY LINK  Refer 1283
Cash Payment $30.10Fire Hall Landline 8/28/15-9/27/15E 100-42280-321 Telephone
Invoice 9/18/2015

$30.10TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CITY OF ST. MICHAEL  Refer 1248
Cash Payment $4,712.00August SAC Fees - 11554 11th StE 602-49455-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 9/1/2015

$4,712.00TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

COMCAST  Refer 1247
Cash Payment $257.26Digital Phone Line Service  City Hall 9/05/15-

10/04/15
E 100-41940-321 Telephone

Invoice 8/25/2015

$257.26TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

COTTONS, INC.  Refer 1257
Cash Payment $410.251 Ton DumpE 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 233-981598 8/6/2015
Cash Payment $121.121 Ton DumpE 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 233-981762 8/7/2015

$531.37TotalTransaction Date 9/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

DYNA SYSTEMS  Refer 1255

8



Payments

HANOVER 09/10/15 11:58 AM
Page 2

Current Period: September 2015

Cash Payment $541.58Mega-Crete Concrete RepairE 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 20931291 8/20/2015
Cash Payment $96.53CAP Screw Six Shooter, Finished Hex NutE 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 20931290 8/20/2015

$638.11TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ECM PUBLISHERS, INC.  Refer 1270
Cash Payment $55.41Ordinance No. 2015-04E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing
Invoice 253747 9/3/2015
Cash Payment $47.49Ordinance No. 2015-03E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing
Invoice 253746 9/3/2015
Cash Payment $350.98Historical Bridge Rehab RebidE 404-46323-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 251637 8/27/2015

$453.88TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FINANCE & COMMERCE  Refer 1254
Cash Payment $215.80Historical Bridge Rehab RebidE 404-46323-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 742346294 8/27/2015

$215.80TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS  Refer 1281
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cold Rental Cooler 9/01/15-9/30/15E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 3723172 9/1/2015
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cold Rental Cooler 9/01/15-9/30/15E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 3723182 9/1/2015

$19.00TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

GRACE CHURCH OF WRIGHT COU  Refer 1275
Cash Payment $100.00Damage Deposit Shelter Rental 9/6/15E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/8/2015

$100.00TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

GUIDANCE POINT TECHNOLOGIE  Refer 1284
Cash Payment $179.982 - Graphics CardsE 100-41600-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 8856 9/5/2015
Cash Payment $205.00Added Projector software to 2 computers and 

reviewed operations
E 100-41600-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 8867 9/5/2015

$384.98TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HARDWARE HANK  Refer 1262
Cash Payment $39.53Mix ConcreteE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 1255543 8/7/2015
Cash Payment $5.39Halogen BulbE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1256971 8/12/2015

$44.92TotalTransaction Date 9/3/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HEINS, DENICE  Refer 1246
Cash Payment $120.00Storage - OctoberE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 9/1/2015

$120.00TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

JIFFY-JR. PRODUCTS  Refer 1256

9



Payments

HANOVER 09/10/15 11:58 AM
Page 3

Current Period: September 2015

Cash Payment $138.78Cleaning SuppliesE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 160231 6/17/2015

$138.78TotalTransaction Date 9/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD  Refer 1249
Cash Payment $2,001.00August WAC Fees - 11554 11th STE 601-49410-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 9/1/2015

$2,001.00TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

KAUL DESIGN GROUP, LLC  Refer 1261
Cash Payment $200.00Priority Maintenance Package - Sept 2015E 201-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous
Invoice 15-124 9/1/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 9/3/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

KOTTKE, BRIAN  Refer 1280
Cash Payment $20.34FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 8/9/2015
Cash Payment $148.51Vehicle WashE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 8/9/2015

$168.85TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES  Refer 1251
Cash Payment $30.00MN Mayors Assoc. Membership - 9/01/15-

8/31/16
E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice 9/1/2015
Cash Payment $3,332.00City of Hanover Membership Dues - 9/01/15-

8/31/16
E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice 221407 9/1/2015

$3,362.00TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MENARDS-BUFFALO  Refer 1260
Cash Payment $153.50Shop ToolsE 100-43100-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 93602 9/1/2015
Cash Payment $6.49Mole and Gopher PelletsE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 93602 9/1/2015

$159.99TotalTransaction Date 9/3/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MTI DISTRIBUTING  Refer 1274
Cash Payment $57.85Irrigation PartsE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1028970-00 8/4/2015
Cash Payment $63.70Irrigation PartsE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1029127-00 8/4/2015

$121.55TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

PLUNKETTS  Refer 1259
Cash Payment $139.24Pest ControlE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 5003248 8/18/2015

$139.24TotalTransaction Date 9/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

REGENCY HOMES  Refer 1250
Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 10187 Kaitlin Ave NEE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/1/2015
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure - 10187 Kaitlin Ave NEE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/1/2015

10



Payments

HANOVER 09/10/15 11:58 AM
Page 4

Current Period: September 2015

$1,750.00TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

STARNER, ANDREW  Refer 1263
Cash Payment $1,500.00Landscape - 1032 Emerald StE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/4/2015
Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 1032 Emerald StE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/4/2015
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure - 1032 Emerald StE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 9/4/2015

$3,250.00TotalTransaction Date 9/4/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

U.S. HEALTHWORKS  Refer 1276
Cash Payment $3,527.50Fire Dept PhysicalsE 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fees
Invoice 99070 8/13/2015

$3,527.50TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WESTAIR  Refer 1277
Cash Payment $330.00Air Conditioner RepairE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 2015-824 6/22/2015

$330.00TotalTransaction Date 9/9/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA  Refer 1252
Cash Payment $7,847.50Patrol Services Wright County - SeptemberE 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice September 2015 8/28/2015

$7,847.50TotalTransaction Date 9/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY  Refer 1272
Cash Payment $1,989.56City LightsE 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 470537111 10/1/2015

$1,989.56TotalTransaction Date 9/8/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Check $0.00
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $33,663.28

Total $33,663.28

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $2,000.00
815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $1,500.00
811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $1,500.00
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $4,712.00
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $2,001.00
404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $566.78
201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $200.00
100 GENERAL FUND $21,183.50

$33,663.28

11



12



13



Paid Register

HANOVER 09/08/15 1:16 PM
Page 1

Check

Numbe

Employee

Number Employee Name

Pay

Period

Pay Group

Description

Check

Amount

Check

Date Status

500339 000000003 Hagen, Brian S. 19 Bi-Weekly $1,797.13 9/11/2015 Outstanding
500338 000000008 Doboszenski, Jason 19 Bi-Weekly $1,306.98 9/11/2015 Outstanding
500337 000000011 Biren, Amy 19 Bi-Weekly $1,063.44 9/11/2015 Outstanding
500341 000000005 Vogel, Scott F. 19 Bi-Weekly $1,608.78 9/11/2015 Outstanding
500340 000000060 Lindrud, Elizabeth 19 Bi-Weekly $1,384.86 9/11/2015 Outstanding

$7,161.19

14



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(19)

09/08/15 1:17 PM
Page 1

000000011 $186.10Federal001 Biren, Amy

000000008 $137.99Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $242.45Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $184.18Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $171.69Vogel, Scott F.

$922.41Federal

000000011 $79.41State Tax - MN005 Biren, Amy

000000008 $61.87Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $106.67Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $79.28Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $73.89Vogel, Scott F.

$401.12State Tax - MN

000000011 $22.45Medicare049 Biren, Amy

000000008 $25.45Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $27.84Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $31.32Vogel, Scott F.

$143.31Medicare

000000011 $95.98Social Security051 Biren, Amy

000000008 $108.82Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $119.04Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $133.92Vogel, Scott F.

$612.76Social Security

000000011Social Security Benefit $95.98501 Biren, Amy

000000008 $108.82Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $119.04Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $133.92Vogel, Scott F.

$612.76Social Security Benefit

000000011Medicare Benefit $22.45502 Biren, Amy

000000008 $25.45Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $27.84Lindrud, Elizabeth

15



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(19)

09/08/15 1:17 PM
Page 2

000000005Medicare Benefit $31.32502 Vogel, Scott F.

$143.31Medicare Benefit

$2,079.60 $756.07Grand Total

16



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(19)

09/08/15 1:18 PM
Page 1

000000011 $100.62PERA052 Biren, Amy

000000008 $114.09Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $162.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $124.80Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $140.40Vogel, Scott F.

$642.41PERA

000000011PERA ER $116.10503 Biren, Amy

000000008 $131.64Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $187.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $144.00Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $162.00Vogel, Scott F.

$741.24PERA ER

$642.41 $741.24Grand Total

17



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(19)

09/08/15 1:19 PM
Page 1

000000011HSA Contribution $196.49505 Biren, Amy

000000008 $71.30Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $278.29Hagen, Brian S.

000000060 $269.09Lindrud, Elizabeth

000000005 $502.97Vogel, Scott F.

$1,318.14HSA Contribution

$1,318.14Grand Total

18



09/10/15 11:59 AM

Cash Balances

HANOVER
Page 1

September 2015

Fund
Begin
Month

GL Debits
Month

GL Credits
Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $753,896.65 $6,405.31 $51,183.61 $709,118.35

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $36,361.46 $0.00 $0.00 $36,361.46

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $97,735.81 $0.00 $200.00 $97,535.81

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $207,253.86 $633.53 $0.00 $207,887.39

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $52,636.52 $0.00 $0.00 $52,636.52

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $28,391.70 $0.00 $0.00 $28,391.70

313 2010 GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES -$19,042.42 $0.00 $0.00 -$19,042.42

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $446,725.73 $0.00 $0.00 $446,725.73

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $534,819.66 $25,244.94 $0.00 $560,064.60

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $234,042.15 $0.00 $0.00 $234,042.15

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $139,753.41 $0.00 $0.00 $139,753.41

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $60,299.51 $0.00 $566.78 $59,732.73

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $8,621.17 $0.00 $0.00 $8,621.17

408 8TH ST CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

411 CITY HALL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $55,501.93 $0.00 $0.00 $55,501.93

412 CROW RIVER CROSSING PROJ FD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

416 RIVER RD RECON FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $52,741.56 $0.00 $947.20 $51,794.36

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $613,932.71 $0.00 $109,683.33 $504,249.38

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $731,121.41 $10,843.17 $14,497.35 $727,467.23

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $186,784.35 $41,773.31 $8,561.83 $219,995.83

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $136,821.26 $2,732.21 $200.00 $139,353.47

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $403,844.07 $0.00 $0.00 $403,844.07

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,704,150.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,704,150.00

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $547,768.19 $0.00 $0.00 $547,768.19

804 SCHENDELS FIELD ESC FUND $145,707.80 $0.00 $0.00 $145,707.80

809 BRIDGES AT HANOVER ESC FUND -$13,476.50 $0.00 $0.00 -$13,476.50

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $29,500.00 $750.00 $3,000.00 $27,250.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $42,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $39,500.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $19,000.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $4,113.45 $0.00 $0.00 $4,113.45

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,538.31 $0.00 $0.00 $3,538.31

821 QUAIL PASS 2ND ADD ESCROW FD $11,764.60 $0.00 $0.00 $11,764.60

900 INTEREST -$5,712.60 $0.00 $0.00 -$5,712.60

$7,251,095.75 $90,882.47 $197,340.10 $7,144,638.12

19



09/10/15 12:00 PM

Revenue Budget by Source

HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

September
2015 Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $572,600.36 $995,728.00 $423,127.64 57.51%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $47,812.00 $95,624.00 $47,812.00 50.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $6,320.51 $10,000.00 $3,679.49 63.21%

$0.00 $626,732.87 $1,101,352.00 $474,619.13 56.91%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $100.00 $6,255.00 $5,000.00 -$1,255.00 125.10%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $50.00 $425.00 $300.00 -$125.00 141.67%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $100.00 $1,546.55 $2,000.00 $453.45 77.33%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $4.00 $11.25 $80.00 $68.75 14.06%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $53,982.25 $106,964.00 $52,981.75 50.47%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $1,271.80 $3,403.20 $6,000.00 $2,596.80 56.72%

SERVICE R 100-34740 Park & Rec Concessions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $2,805.21 $2,000.00 -$805.21 140.26%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $1,950.00 $2,000.00 $50.00 97.50%

$1,525.80 $70,378.46 $124,344.00 $53,965.54 56.60%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $7,914.80 $0.00 -$7,914.80 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $11,522.03 $0.00 -$11,522.03 0.00%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $4,407.27 $1,000.00 -$3,407.27 440.73%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $3,124.70 $7,000.00 $3,875.30 44.64%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $4,345.00 $0.00 -$4,345.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $200.00 $8,250.00 $7,000.00 -$1,250.00 117.86%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$200.00 $39,563.80 $21,000.00 -$18,563.80 188.40%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $10,370.00 $10,300.00 -$70.00 100.68%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $262.00 $100.00 -$162.00 262.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $4,542.73 $96,981.06 $120,000.00 $23,018.94 80.82%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $40.00 $180.00 $100.00 -$80.00 180.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 33.33%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $17.00 $27.00 $50.00 $23.00 54.00%

$4,599.73 $108,320.06 $132,350.00 $24,029.94 81.84%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $19,377.50 $38,755.00 $19,377.50 50.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $52,929.50 $105,859.00 $52,929.50 50.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $169.50 $339.00 $169.50 50.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $2,000.00 $24,000.00 $22,000.00 8.33%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $4,600.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $74,476.50 $175,053.00 $100,576.50 42.55%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $2,182.66 $1,500.00 -$682.66 145.51%

$0.00 $2,182.66 $1,500.00 -$682.66 145.51%Source Alt Code FINES

$6,325.53 $921,654.35 $1,555,599.00 $633,944.65 59.25%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

20



09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $5,025.82 $10,500.00 $5,474.18 47.86%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $330.64 $651.00 $320.36 50.79%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $73.00 $152.00 $79.00 48.03%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.85 $74.65 $75.00 $0.35 99.53%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $315.00 $450.00 $135.00 70.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $3,362.00 $9,654.40 $7,000.00 -$2,654.40 137.92%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $61.24 $1,000.00 $938.76 6.12%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $42.73 $2,122.84 $5,000.00 $2,877.16 42.46%

$3,405.58 $17,657.59 $24,828.00 $7,170.41 71.12%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $2.52 $161.27 $160.00 -$1.27 100.79%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-160 Liability Insurance Emp $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $21.06 $0.00 -$21.06 0.00%

$2.52 $182.33 $6,010.00 $5,827.67 3.03%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $2,500.00 $54,533.30 $72,588.00 $18,054.70 75.13%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $187.50 $4,369.52 $5,400.00 $1,030.48 80.92%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $155.00 $3,612.13 $4,500.00 $887.87 80.27%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $36.25 $844.77 $1,100.00 $255.23 76.80%

CITYADM E 100-41400-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-132 Employer Paid HSA $278.29 $2,759.88 $3,360.00 $600.12 82.14%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $0.00 $322.21 $360.00 $37.79 89.50%

CITYADM E 100-41400-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $5.24 $335.70 $350.00 $14.30 95.91%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $4,270.26 $3,600.00 -$670.26 118.62%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $1,054.80 $1,000.00 -$54.80 105.48%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $60.00 $400.00 $500.00 $100.00 80.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$3,222.28 $72,502.57 $92,758.00 $20,255.43 78.16%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $1,548.00 $40,191.18 $54,043.00 $13,851.82 74.37%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $116.10 $2,869.02 $4,100.00 $1,230.98 69.98%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $95.98 $2,946.80 $3,400.00 $453.20 86.67%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $22.45 $689.13 $800.00 $110.87 86.14%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-132 Employer Paid HSA $196.49 $1,922.01 $2,580.00 $657.99 74.50%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $0.00 $722.65 $700.00 -$22.65 103.24%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $357.00 $1,428.00 $1,071.00 25.00%
21



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

CLERICAL E 100-41430-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $3.29 $210.63 $250.00 $39.37 84.25%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $5,918.99 $5,412.00 -$506.99 109.37%

$1,982.31 $55,827.41 $72,713.00 $16,885.59 76.78%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-208 Training and Instructio $225.00 $360.00 $1,500.00 $1,140.00 24.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-306 Dues & Subscriptions $199.07 $399.43 $300.00 -$99.43 133.14%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $387.25 $1,000.00 $612.75 38.73%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $165.76 $1,500.00 $1,334.24 11.05%

$424.07 $1,312.44 $4,600.00 $3,287.56 28.53%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $1,920.00 $8,640.00 $24,960.00 $16,320.00 34.62%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $144.00 $648.00 $1,900.00 $1,252.00 34.11%

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $119.04 $535.68 $1,500.00 $964.32 35.71%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $27.84 $125.28 $400.00 $274.72 31.32%

ACCTING E 100-41530-132 Employer Paid HSA $269.09 $656.31 $0.00 -$656.31 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $0.00 $50.00 $0.00 -$50.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $5.24 $335.70 $350.00 $14.30 95.91%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $310.76 $2,000.00 $1,689.24 15.54%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $1,782.78 $35,032.78 $38,500.00 $3,467.22 90.99%

$4,267.99 $46,334.51 $69,610.00 $23,275.49 66.56%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $23,400.00 $27,000.00 $3,600.00 86.67%

$0.00 $23,400.00 $27,000.00 $3,600.00 86.67%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $17,609.96 $17,600.00 -$9.96 100.06%

$0.00 $17,609.96 $17,600.00 -$9.96 100.06%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $43.85 $2,389.01 $4,900.00 $2,510.99 48.76%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $8.75 $100.00 $91.25 8.75%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $0.00 $3,443.99 $2,500.00 -$943.99 137.76%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $1,561.73 $6,800.00 $5,238.27 22.97%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $0.00 $1,626.37 $1,500.00 -$126.37 108.42%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

$43.85 $9,029.85 $19,800.00 $10,770.15 45.61%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $384.98 $2,354.98 $4,000.00 $1,645.02 58.87%

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$384.98 $2,354.98 $4,000.00 $1,645.02 58.87%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $889.62 $11,056.16 $21,152.00 $10,095.84 52.27%

$889.62 $11,056.16 $21,152.00 $10,095.84 52.27%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $12,689.45 $17,000.00 $4,310.55 74.64%

$0.00 $12,689.45 $17,000.00 $4,310.55 74.64%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $617.12 $5,000.00 $4,382.88 12.34%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $541.58 $3,778.50 $10,000.00 $6,221.50 37.79%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $250.00 $300.00 $50.00 83.33%22



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3
09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $139.24 $4,106.49 $8,400.00 $4,293.51 48.89%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $257.26 $2,343.35 $5,500.00 $3,156.65 42.61%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $220.00 $7,000.00 $6,780.00 3.14%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $829.33 $4,979.17 $9,000.00 $4,020.83 55.32%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $1,175.94 $2,691.00 $5,000.00 $2,309.00 53.82%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $350.73 $1,724.03 $2,400.00 $675.97 71.83%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $120.50 $500.00 $379.50 24.10%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $604.81 $3,915.67 $5,000.00 $1,084.33 78.31%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $1,262.78 $1,000.00 -$262.78 126.28%

$3,898.89 $26,008.61 $61,600.00 $35,591.39 42.22%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $0.00 $7,012.75 $25,000.00 $17,987.25 28.05%

$0.00 $7,012.75 $25,000.00 $17,987.25 28.05%Dept 41950 Engineer

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $29,738.07 $250.00 -$29,488.0711895.23%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $9,153.50 $25,200.00 $16,046.50 36.32%

$0.00 $38,891.57 $25,450.00 -$13,441.57 152.82%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $435.42 $500.00 $64.58 87.08%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $102.90 $372.02 $2,000.00 $1,627.98 18.60%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$102.90 $807.44 $3,250.00 $2,442.56 24.84%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $1,105.15 $35,771.85 $69,335.00 $33,563.15 51.59%

$1,105.15 $35,771.85 $69,335.00 $33,563.15 51.59%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $7,847.50 $71,010.79 $94,170.00 $23,159.21 75.41%

$7,847.50 $71,010.79 $94,170.00 $23,159.21 75.41%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $34,340.00 $34,340.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $2,129.00 $2,129.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $515.00 $515.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $22.21 $0.00 -$22.21 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $116.22 $10,187.36 $10,000.00 -$187.36 101.87%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $3,527.50 $3,957.50 $4,000.00 $42.50 98.94%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $572.29 $950.00 $377.71 60.24%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $2,370.08 $0.00 -$2,370.08 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $88.50 $10,000.00 $9,911.50 0.89%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$3,643.72 $17,197.94 $62,134.00 $44,936.06 27.68%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $0.00 $909.29 $5,500.00 $4,590.71 16.53%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $549.00 $782.14 $1,500.00 $717.86 52.14%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $850.00 $850.00 0.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $0.00 $5,800.74 $4,500.00 -$1,300.74 128.91%23



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4
09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $835.79 $5,000.00 $4,164.21 16.72%

$549.00 $8,327.96 $17,350.00 $9,022.04 48.00%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $90.00 $6,291.00 $7,500.00 $1,209.00 83.88%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $447.61 $1,500.00 $1,052.39 29.84%

$90.00 $6,738.61 $9,000.00 $2,261.39 74.87%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $20.34 $2,292.15 $5,000.00 $2,707.85 45.84%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $153.90 $3,785.42 $9,000.00 $5,214.58 42.06%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $5,035.47 $7,465.00 $2,429.53 67.45%

$174.24 $11,113.04 $23,465.00 $12,351.96 47.36%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $179.65 $1,650.00 $1,470.35 10.89%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $349.00 $2,479.96 $3,500.00 $1,020.04 70.86%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $30.10 $260.42 $800.00 $539.58 32.55%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $175.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $361.19 $2,205.30 $5,000.00 $2,794.70 44.11%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities -$1,100.52 $2,434.93 $2,600.00 $165.07 93.65%

-$360.23 $7,560.26 $13,725.00 $6,164.74 55.08%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $2,000.00 $29,500.00 $27,500.00 6.78%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $6,500.00 $6,000.00 -$500.00 108.33%

$0.00 $8,500.00 $35,500.00 $27,000.00 23.94%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $3,653.47 $29,526.17 $50,000.00 $20,473.83 59.05%

$3,653.47 $29,526.17 $50,000.00 $20,473.83 59.05%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $185.00 $500.00 $315.00 37.00%

$0.00 $185.00 $500.00 $315.00 37.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $50.00 $150.00 $100.00 33.33%

$0.00 $50.00 $150.00 $100.00 33.33%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,640.95 $65,464.96 $98,000.00 $32,535.04 66.80%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $274.25 $570.65 $0.00 -$570.65 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $3,554.75 $5,500.00 $1,945.25 64.63%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $293.64 $5,380.84 $7,400.00 $2,019.16 72.71%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $242.74 $4,668.26 $6,400.00 $1,731.74 72.94%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $56.77 $1,091.76 $1,500.00 $408.24 72.78%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-132 Employer Paid HSA $574.27 $2,339.63 $2,717.00 $377.37 86.11%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $0.00 $1,263.56 $1,532.00 $268.44 82.48%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $238.10 $300.00 $61.90 79.37%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $123.64 $10,797.05 $7,500.00 -$3,297.05 143.96%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $10,548.24 $14,664.00 $4,115.76 71.93%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $950.00 $1,500.00 $550.00 63.33%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $137.52 $1,214.02 $2,000.00 $785.98 60.70%24



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5
09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

$5,343.78 $108,081.82 $149,013.00 $40,931.18 72.53%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

HWYROAD E 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels $34.30 $4,445.46 $10,000.00 $5,554.54 44.45%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies $191.53 $840.73 $5,000.00 $4,159.27 16.81%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $956.80 $4,108.44 $6,000.00 $1,891.56 68.47%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-240 Small Tools and Minor $523.45 $1,161.38 $2,500.00 $1,338.62 46.46%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-260 Uniforms $0.00 $474.50 $2,000.00 $1,525.50 23.73%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-310 Other Professional Serv $49.25 $6,306.00 $3,000.00 -$3,306.00 210.20%

HWYROAD E 100-43100-325 Taxes $0.00 $39.00 $200.00 $161.00 19.50%

$1,755.33 $17,375.51 $28,700.00 $11,324.49 60.54%Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $71,108.00 $71,000.00 -$108.00 100.15%

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $3,930.24 $7,000.00 $3,069.76 56.15%

$0.00 $75,038.24 $78,000.00 $2,961.76 96.20%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $1,082.40 $8,917.82 $12,500.00 $3,582.18 71.34%

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$1,082.40 $8,917.82 $13,000.00 $4,082.18 68.60%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $15,999.93 $15,000.00 -$999.93 106.67%

$0.00 $15,999.93 $15,000.00 -$999.93 106.67%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,094.20 $16,883.84 $27,000.00 $10,116.16 62.53%

$2,094.20 $16,883.84 $27,000.00 $10,116.16 62.53%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $1,784.00 $2,000.00 $216.00 89.20%

$0.00 $1,784.00 $2,000.00 $216.00 89.20%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,068.05 $23,799.64 $35,000.00 $11,200.36 68.00%

$3,068.05 $23,799.64 $35,000.00 $11,200.36 68.00%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 43260 Weed Control

WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 43260 Weed Control

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%

$0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-160 Liability Insurance Emp $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $82.18 $0.00 -$82.18 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $121.55 $3,687.06 $5,000.00 $1,312.94 73.74%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $46.02 $2,348.66 $3,300.00 $951.34 71.17%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $134.79 $1,250.52 $1,100.00 -$150.52 113.68%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $622.38 $6,000.00 $5,377.62 10.37%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs/FYCC $426.00 $9,015.16 $9,000.00 -$15.16 100.17%

PARKS E 100-45200-441 Community Garden $0.00 $179.49 $1,000.00 $820.51 17.95%
25



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

September
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6
09/10/15 12:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $479.11 $5,260.32 $7,000.00 $1,739.68 75.15%

$1,207.47 $22,445.77 $32,400.00 $9,954.23 69.28%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%

$0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $835.00 $7,878.59 $5,000.00 -$2,878.59 157.57%

$835.00 $7,878.59 $5,000.00 -$2,878.59 157.57%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $207,300.00 $269,000.00 $61,700.00 77.06%

$0.00 $207,300.00 $269,000.00 $61,700.00 77.06%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$50,714.07 $1,047,371.42 $1,537,063.00 $489,691.58 68.14%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

26



 
 
 
 
  engineering planning environmental construction    477 Temperance Street 
                                                                                                                                                                          St. Paul, MN 55101 
    Tel:  651-286-8450    
         Fax: 651-286-8488 
 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer 
 wsbeng.com  
  C:\Users\admin\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\XUUMMT87\2931-00 Ltr Recc HMCC 091015.docx 

September 10, 2015 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Hanover 
11250 5th Street NE 
Hanover, MN 55341 
 
Re: REBID of the Hanover Historic Bridge Rehabilitation Project Bridge No. 92366 

City of Hanover, MN 
 WSB Project No. 2931-00 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members: 
 
Bids were received for the above-referenced project on Thursday, September 10, 2015, and were 
opened and read aloud.  Three bids were received.  The bids were checked for mathematical 
accuracy and tabulated.  Please find enclosed the bid summary indicating the low bid as 
submitted by LS Black Constructors, Inc., St. Paul, Minnesota in the amount of $139,242.00.   
 
We recommend that the City Council consider these bids and award a contract in the amount of 
$139,242.00 to LS Black Constructors, Inc. based on the results of the bids received. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WSB & Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 
Justin Messner, PE 
Project Manager 
 
Enclosures 
 
kkp 
 
 

27



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 15th day of September, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek. 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to table the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ____________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 09-15-15-61 

 
A RESOLUTION RECEIVING BIDS AND AWARDING A CONTRACT 

FOR THE HANOVER HISTORIC BRIDGE  
REHABILITATION PROJECT BRIDGE NO. 92366  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the improvement as shown on the plan for the 
above-referenced project, bids were received, opened and tabulated according to law, and the following 
bids were received complying with the advertisement: 
 

 Contractor Total Bid 
Schedule A + Alt #1 

Total Bid 
Schedule A + Alt #2 

1 LS Black Constructors, Inc. $139,242.00 $139,242.00 
2 Redstone Construction, LLC $183,180.00 $183,180.00 
3 Duininck, Inc. $216,005.90 $208,605.90 
    

WHEREAS, it appears that LS Black Constructors, Inc., of St. Paul, MN is the lowest responsible 
bidder, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Hanover that: 

 
1. The Mayor and City Administrator are hereby authorized to enter into a contract with LS Black 

Constructors, Inc. in the amount of $139,242.00 in the name the City of Hanover, Minnesota for 
the improvement outlined in the above-referenced project according to the plans and 
specifications, therefore, approved by the City Council and on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
2. The Engineer, WSB & Associates, Inc. is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to 

all bidders the deposits made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful bidder 
and the next two lowest bidders shall be retained until a contract has been signed. 

  

28



Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 3rd day of August, 2015. 
 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

29



K:\02931-000\Admin\Construction Admin\REBID\2931-00 Bid Tab Summary 091015

PROJECT:

Project Bridge No. 92366

OWNER:
City of Hanover, MN

WSB PROJECT NO.: 
2931-000

Bids Opened: Thursday, September 10, 2015 at 10:00am

Contractor
Bid Security 

(5%)
TOTAL BID                   

Schedule A + Alt #1
TOTAL BID               

Schedule A + Alt #2

1 LS Black Constructors, Inc. X $139,242.00 $139,242.00

2 Redsdtone Construction, LLC X $183,180.00 $183,180.00

3 Duininck, Inc. X $216,005.90 $208,605.90

Engineer's Opinion of Cost $122,580.00 $148,480.00

Denotes corrected figure

Justin Messner, PE Project Manager

BID TABULATION SUMMARY

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct tabulation of the bids as received on September 10, 2015.

REBID of the Hanover Historic Bridge Rehabilitation

30



 9/10/2015 

WSB
Project Bid Abstract

Project Name: HANO - Hanover Bridge 92366
Rehabilitation Contract No.: 

Client:  City of Hanover Project No.: 02931-00
Bid Opening:  09/10/2015 10:00 AM Owner:  Minneapolis

Project: 02931-00 - HANO - Hanover Bridge 92366 Rehabilitation Engineers Estimate LS Black Constructors, 
Inc. 

Redstone Construction, 
LLC Duininck Brothers, Inc. 

Line No. Item Units Quantity Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price
SCHEDULE A - BRIDGE REHABILITATION 
1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $26,400.00 $26,400.00 $37,500.00 $37,500.00 $55,900.00 $55,900.00
2 2403.502 TREATED TIMBER (ABUTMENT/PIER CAP) MBM 0.516 $25,000.00 $12,900.00 $66,000.00 $34,056.00 $10,000.00 $5,160.00 $33,650.00 $17,363.40
3 2403.622 INSTALL TIMBER BRIDGE DECK (CITY SUPPLIED) S F 3700 $10.00 $37,000.00 $7.20 $26,640.00 $16.00 $59,200.00 $18.00 $66,600.00
4 2433.602 GREASE EXP BEARING ASSEMBLIES EACH 2 $4,500.00 $9,000.00 $10,200.00 $20,400.00 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $5,500.00 $11,000.00
5 2541.618 TUCKPOINT HISTORIC STRUCTURE S F 330 $50.00 $16,500.00 $52.80 $17,424.00 $50.00 $16,500.00 $45.75 $15,097.50
6 2564.531 SIGN PANELS TYPE C S F 12 $90.00 $1,080.00 $102.00 $1,224.00 $85.00 $1,020.00 $85.00 $1,020.00

Total SCHEDULE A - BRIDGE REHABILITATION: $111,480.00 $126,144.00 $131,380.00 $166,980.90 
ALTERNATE #1 
7 2433.505 REMOVE & STOCKPILE TIMBER BRIDGE DECK S F 3700 $3.00 $11,100.00 $3.54 $13,098.00 $14.00 $51,800.00 $13.25 $49,025.00

Total ALTERNATE #1: $11,100.00 $13,098.00 $51,800.00 $49,025.00 
ALTERNATE #2 
8 2433.505 REMOVE & DISPOSE TIMBER BRIDGE DECK S F 3700 $10.00 $37,000.00 $3.54 $13,098.00 $14.00 $51,800.00 $11.25 $41,625.00

Total ALTERNATE #2: $37,000.00 $13,098.00 $51,800.00 $41,625.00 

$122,580.00 $139,242.00 $183,180.00 $216,005.90 Total Schedule A + ALTERNATE #1: 
Total Schedule A + ALTERNATE #2: $148,480.00 $208,605.90 

% of Estimate for Project 02931-00 -4.54% 47.25% 61.44%

I hereby certify that this is an exact reproduction of bids received.

Certified By:  _______________________________  License No.  ________
Date:  ____________

$139,242.00 $183,180.00 

45857September 10, 2015

31



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by 
Mayor Kauffman at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, 
Minnesota, on the 15th day of September, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present: Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, 
Zajicek. 
 
The following Council Members were absent:     
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 09-15-15-62 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING 2016 PRELIMINARY BUDGET & LEVY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby adopts the 
2016 Preliminary Budget as follows: 
 

• City of Hanover General Fund Budget - $1,584,260 
o General Government - $508,643 
o Public Safety - $389,289 
o Public Works - $331,078 
o Culture and Recreation - $45,250 
o Transfers Out - $310,000 
o Transit - $0 

 
• Hanover EDA Budget - $50,200 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover hereby levies the 
following sums of money, collectible in 2016, upon the taxable property in the City of Hanover 
as follows: 
 

• City of Hanover Levy - $1,410,972 
• Hanover EDA Levy - $49,000 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Administrator is hereby instructed to transmit a 
certified copy of this Resolution to the Wright County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

33



2015 2016 $ Change % Change

General Fund Revenue Budget 1,555,599 1,600,873 45,274 2.91%

General Fund Expenditure Budget 1,537,063 1,584,260 47,197 3.07%

General Government 498,370 508,643 10,273 2%
Public Safety 375,329 389,289 13,960 4%
Public Works 347,714 331,078 (16,636) -5%

Culture and Recreation 46,650 45,250 (1,400) -3%
Transfers for Capital Projects 269,000 310,000 41,000 15%

Total 1,537,063 1,584,260 47,197 3.07%

Debt Service
Revenue Budget 290,752 291,334 582 0%

Expenditure Budget 397,103 365,014 (32,089) -8%
Levy 217,602                   223,006                   5,404 2.48%

Total City of Hanover Levy
General Government 995,728 1,075,386

Fire Protection 95,624 112,579
Tax Abatement 0 0

Debt Service 217,602 223,006

2016 Budget Summary

34



Account Description Category 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual
2015 Actual 

7/31/15 2015 Budget
% of 

Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change Comments
Revenue Accounts
100-31000 Property Taxes - City TAXES 949,730 947,465 957,722 981,814 940,618 572,600 995,728 1,075,386 8% increase
100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire Dept TAXES 93,603 94,892 96,217 95,882 99,864 47,812 95,624 112,579 18% increase, caused by increased budget and new contract
100-31800 Franchise Fees TAXES 9,577 10,334 8,096 14,452 12,194 6,320 10,000 12,000

TOTAL TAXES 1,052,909 1,052,691 1,062,035 1,092,148 1,052,676 626,732 1,101,352 57% 1,199,966 9%

100-32110 Alcoholic Beverages LIC PERM 10,270 10,295 10,387 10,305 10,370 10,370 10,300 10,300
100-32180 Other Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 100 568 650 1,561 700 262 100 100
100-32210 Building Permits LIC PERM 39,857 47,327 77,849 190,003 154,881 75,970 120,000 100,000 decrease for dwindling empty lots
100-32240 Animal Licenses LIC PERM 175 230 240 340 120 120 100 100
100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses LIC PERM 1,200 1,600 400 3,000 1000 500 1,500 1,500
100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses LIC PERM 225 125 1,105 0 1050 0 300 1050
100-32280 Other Non-Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 45 36 374 74 37 10 50 50

TOTAL LIC PERM 51,872 60,181 91,005 205,283 168,158 87,232 132,350 66% 113,100 -15%

100-33400 State Grants and Aid INTGOVT 0 0 0 0 2,915 0 38755 0
100-33401 Local Gov't Aid (LGA) INTGOVT 63,204 63,614 63,203 63,203 100,494 0 105,859 107,496 certified amount
100-33410 MV Credit INTGOVT 1,579 1,475 0 0 1,297 0 0 0
100-33420 PERA Aid INTGOVT 339 339 339 339 339 0 339 339
100-33422 State Fire Aid INTGOVT 21,786 24,422 24,521 34,204 36,371 2,000 24,000 29,500
100-33426 State Police Aid INTGOVT 4,681 4,668 4,542 5,057 5,265 0 4,600 4,600
100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads INTGOVT 0 0 0 0 14,488 0 1500 0

TOTAL INTGOVT 91,589 94,517 92,605 102,803 161,169 2,000 175,053 1% 141,935 -19%

100-34000 Chargers for Service SERVICE 16,643
100-34101 City Hall Rentals SERVICE 6,120 4,758 5,050 4,800 6,700 6,100 5,000 7,000
100-34105 Sales of Maps & Publications SERVICE 6 3 9 0 0 0 0
100-34107 Assessment Searches SERVICE 225 175 375 725 350 275 300 300
100-34108 Administrative Fees SERVICE 2,367 2,675 1,346 1,402 2,710 1,347 2,000 2,000
100-34109 Copies/Faxes SERVICE 61 60 104 76 82.5 7.25 80 50
100-34207 Fire Protection SERVICE 100,812 102,116 102,210 102,210 105,899 53,982 106,964 104,022
100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb SERVICE 6,034 5,246 3,494 8,264 26 2,131 6,000 5,000
100-34780 Park Shelter Rental Fees SERVICE 2,000 1,825 2,571 2,351 3,013 2,672 2,000 3,000
100-34940 Cemetery Revenues SERVICE 3,000 2,500 2,000 0 2,950 1,950 2,000 2,000

TOTAL SERVICE 120,624 119,356 117,159 119,827 138,374 68,464 124,344 55% 123,372 -1%

100-35100 Court Fines FINES 4,385 4,298 861 1,420 315 1723 1,500 1,500
TOTAL FINES 4,385 4,298 861 1,420 315 1723 1,500 115% 1,500 0%

100-36100 Special Assessments MISC 5,908 400 0 951 53.98 7914.8 0 0
100-36200 Misc Revenues MISC    7,042 9,009 5,355 67,479 2,592 11,252 0 0
100-36210 Interest Earnings MISC 13,996 13,708 9,074 4,476 -528 4,407 1,000 1,000
100-36215 Investment Income/Loss MISC 0 0 0 0 7,518 3,125 7000 6,000
100-36218 Grants MISC 2,377 1,000 2,799 1,205 0 0
100-36230 Contributions & Donations MISC 2,450 5,500 5,096 2,742 2,075 4,345 0 0
100-36235 Insurance Dividends MISC 4,800 5,976 10,241 7,094 5123 0 6,000 6,000
100-36250 Damage Deposits MISC 6,350 5,700 6,934 6,291 7,441 7,400 7,000 8,000
100-36291 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment MISC 0 0 3,300 1,300 100 0 0 0
100-39203 Transfers from Other Funds MISC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL MISC 42,923 41,294 42,798 91,538 24,375 38,444 21,000 183% 21,000 0%

TOTAL REVENUE 1,364,303 1,372,337 1,406,462 1,613,019 1,545,068 824,595 1,555,599 53% 1,600,873 2.91%

2016 Revenue Budget
City of Hanover

35



Account Description 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual
2015 Actual 

7/31/15 2015 Budget
% of 

Budget 2016 Budget
% 

Change
Dollar 

Change Comments
Expenditure Accounts

General Government
100-41110-111 COUNCIL: COMMITTEE WAGES 11,680 12,786 12,176 9,359 5,026 10,500 12,000 1,500
100-41110-122 COUNCIL: FICA 724 793 755 572 312 651 744 93
100-41110-123 COUNCIL: MEDICARE 169 185 177 134 73 152 174 22
100-41110-150 COUNCIL: WORKERS COMP PREM 44 44 48 50 74 75 0 (75)
100-41110-208 COUNCIL: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 992 1,109 398 0 315 450 450 0
100-41110-306 COUNCIL: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,520 2,552 670 2,912 6,292 7,000 7,000 0
100-41110-331 COUNCIL: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,080 801 158 160 61 1,000 1,000 0
100-41110-437 COUNCIL: DISCRETIONARY MISC 3,486 3,396 3,586 5,701 2,056 5,000 12,500 7,500 Added $7,500 for 125th Anniversary

Total Council 19,696 21,667 17,967 18,888 14,209 24,828 57% 33,868 36% 9,040
100-41330-111 BRDS & COMM: COMMITTEE WAGES 3,300 2,850 2,280 2,820 0 5,500 4,000 (1,500)
100-41330-150 BRDS & COMM: WORKERS COMP PREM 159 160 0 (160)
100-41330-160 BRDS & COMM: LIAB INSUR PREMIUM 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 (100)
100-41330-208 BRDS & COMM: TRAINING & INSTRUC 0 110 0 0 0 150 150 0
100-41330-331 BRDS & COMM: TRAVEL EXPENSES 0 0 374 18 0 100 100 0
100-41330-437 BRDS & COMM: OTHER MISC 21 0

Total Brds & Comm 3,300 2,960 2,654 2,838 180 6,010 3% 4,250 -29% (1,760)
100-41400-101 CITY ADMIN: FULL-TIME WAGES 80,829 72,582 12,433 63,612 47,033 72,588 70,000 (2,588)
100-41400-121 CITY ADMIN: PERA 5,856 4,377 0 4,553 3,807 5,400 5,250 (150)
100-41400-122 CITY ADMIN: FICA 4,830 4,278 590 3,894 3,147 4,500 4,340 (160)
100-41400-123 CITY ADMIN: MEDICARE 1,130 1,001 138 911 736 1,100 1,015 (85)
100-41400-132 CITY ADMIN: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 1,623 5,088 3,360 0 (3,360)
100-41400-134 CITY ADMIN: EMPLOYER PAID LIFE 1,073 325 360 400 40 additional to health insurance
100-41400-150 CITY ADMIN: WORKERS COMP PREM 330 350 0 (350)
100-41400-151 CITY ADMIN: HEALTH INSUR PREM 9,135 6,238 0 5,676 3,725 3,600 8,400 4,800 reflects monthly allotment
100-41400-208 CITY ADMIN: TRAINING & INSTRUC 250 465 464 561 824 1,000 1,000 0
100-41400-306 CITY ADMIN: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 445 185 500 500 0
100-41400-310 CITYADMIN: OTHER PROF SERVICES 0 27,467 44,317 292 0 0 0 0

Total City Admin 102,030 116,408 57,941 82,640 65,200 92,758 70% 90,905 -2% (1,853)
100-41410-200 ELECT: OFFICE SUPPLIES 0 1,162 0 3,005 0 0 2,000 2,000
100-41410-310 ELECT: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 3,660 0 5,317 0 0 5,000 5,000
100-41410-351 ELECT: LEGAL NOTICES PUBLISHING 0 0 0 279 0 0 300 300
100-41410-400 ELECT: REPAIRS & MAINT CONTR 751 0 762 0 0 1,000 1,000 0

Total Elect 751 4,822 762 8,601 0 1,000 0% 8,300 730% 7,300
100-41430-101 CLERICAL: FULL-TIME WAGES 37,550 39,200 43,120 80,994 35,547 54,043 42,266 (11,777)
100-41430-103 CLERICAL: PART-TIME WAGES 1,005 0 13,031 0 0 0 0
100-41430-121 CLERICAL: PERA 2,788 2,827 1,832 5,711 2,521 4,100 3,170 (930)
100-41430-122 CLERICAL: FICA 2,384 2,417 2,544 5,607 2,657 3,400 2,620 (780)
100-41430-123 CLERICAL: MEDICARE 558 565 595 1,311 622 800 613 (187)
100-41430-132 CLERICAL: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 1,870 1,510 2,580 0 (2,580)
100-41430-134 CLERICAL: EMPLOYER PAID LIFE (3,996) 1,885 700 1,000 300 additional to health insurance
100-41430-142 CLERICAL: UNEMPLOYEMENT BENEFIT 491 357 1,428 0 (1,428)
100-41430-150 CLERICAL: WORKERS COMP PREM 207 250 0 (250)
100-41430-151 CLERICAL: HEALTH INSUR PREM 8,984 8,946 17,319 10,443 5,402 5,412 8,400 2,988 reflects monthly allotment
100-41430-208 CLERICAL: TRAINING & INSTRUC 500 500
100-41430-306 CLERICAL: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 250 250

Total Clerical 53,269 53,956 65,410 115,462 50,708 72,713 70% 58,819 -19% (13,894)
100-41435-208 STAFF EXP: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 1,745 494 920 1,060 135 1,500 0 (1,500)
100-41435-260 STAFF EXP: UNIFORMS 0 80 0 224 0 300 300 0
100-41435-306 STAFF EXP: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,537 5,625 6,967 197 165 300 0 (300)
100-41435-310 STAFF EXP: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 9,845 5,763 578 355 1,000 1,000 0
100-41435-331 STAFF EXP: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,539 1,101 368 561 166 1,500 1,500 0

Total Staff 8,821 17,144 14,017 2,620 821 4,600 18% 2,800 -39% (1,800)
100-41530-101 ACCNT: FULL-TIME WAGES 59,367 59,281 78,673 0 2,880 24,960 52,416 27,456
100-41530-121 ACCNT: PERA 4,301 3,464 5,869 0 216 1,900 3,931 2,031

City of Hanover
Budget 2015

36



100-41530-122 ACCNT: FICA 3,678 3,676 5,019 0 179 1,500 3,250 1,750
100-41530-123 ACCNT: MEDICARE 860 860 1,174 0 42 400 760 360
100-41530-134 ACCNT: LIFE 50 550 550 additional to health insurance
100-41530-150 ACCNT: WORKERS COMP PREM 0 330 350 0 (350)
100-41530-151 ACCNT: HEALTH INSUR PREM 8,481 6,021 9,149 0 0 2,000 10,800 8,800 reflects monthly allotment
100-41530-208 ACCNT: TRAINING & INSTRUC 1,000 1,000
100-41530-306 ACCNT: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 500 500
100-41530-310 ACCNT: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 33,250 38,500 3,000 (35,500) audit prep. training

Total Accnt 76,687 73,301 99,885 0 36,947 69,610 53% 76,207 9% 6,597
100-41540-301 AUDITING: AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 19,075 19,840 22,740 27,812 23,400 27,000 30,000 3,000 cost of audit (23,500) and audit prep. (6,500)

Total Auditing & Accounting 19,075 19,840 22,740 27,812 23,400 27,000 87% 30,000 11% 3,000
100-41550-310 ASSESSING: OTHER PROF SVCS 16,378 16,316 16,889 17,328 17,523 17,600 18,000 400

Total Assesing 16,378 16,316 16,889 17,328 17,523 17,600 100% 18,000 2% 400
100-41570-200 PURCH: OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,898 6,172 5,587 1,128 1,504 4,900 4,900 0
100-41570-205 PURCH: BANK FEES 159 212 124 74 7 100 100 0
100-41570-207 PURCH: COMPUTER SUPPLIES 1,425 1,268 4,472 4,284 3,444 2,500 3,500 1,000
100-41570-220 PURCH: REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 4,728 6,724 8,425 1,939 1,240 6,800 5,800 (1,000)
100-41570-322 PURCH: POSTAGE 2,049 1,222 458 951 1,136 1,500 1,500 0
100-41570-570 PURCH: OFFICE EQUIP/FURNISH 2,599 2,501 1,305 120 0 4,000 4,000 0

Total Purch 13,859 18,099 20,370 8,496 7,330 19,800 37% 19,800 0% 0
100-41600-220 COMPUTER: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY 4,693 1,645 4,000 0 (4,000)
100-41600-310 COMPUTER: OTHER PROF SVCS 0 0 4,000 4,000

Total Computer 0 0 0 4,693 1,645 4,000 41% 4,000 0% 0
100-41610-304 ATTORNEY: LEGAL FEES 21,767 13,799 19,286 20,536 5,404 21,152 21,787 635 increase of 3%

Total Attorney 21,767 13,799 19,286 20,536 5,404 21,152 26% 21,787 3% 635
100-41910-310 PLANNING & ZONING: OTH PROF SVCS 22,022 11,489 24,092 26,511 7,814 17,000 17,000 0

Total Planning & Zoning 22,022 11,489 24,092 26,511 7,814 17,000 46% 17,000 0% 0
100-41940-101 BLDG/GRDS: FULL-TIME WAGES 43,783 46,834 34,845 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-121 BLDG/GRDS: PERA 3,174 3,382 755 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-122 BLDG/GRDS: FICA 2,820 2,893 2,283 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-123 BLDG/GRDS: MEDICARE 659 677 534 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-150 BLDG/GRDS: WORKERS COMP 1,478 1,664 1,649 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-151 BLDG/GRDS: INSURANCE PREMIUM 8,447 8,420 7,924 0 0 0 0 0
100-41940-210 BLDG/GRDS: OPERATING SUPPLIES 3,579 3,484 4,454 2,494 617 5,000 5,000 0
100-41940-220 BLDG/GRDS: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY 7,109 4,943 10,195 (3,187) 3,157 10,000 10,000 0
100-41940-306 BLDG/GRDS: DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 250 250 300 300 0 Liquor License
100-41940-310 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER PROF SVCS 430 432 6,508 6,998 3,377 8,400 8,400 0
100-41940-321 BLDG/GRDS: TELEPHONE 5,020 4,851 5,851 4,476 1,822 5,500 3,500 (2,000)
100-41940-325 BLDG/GRDS: REAL ESTATE TAXES 6,988 6,723 6,439 258 220 7,000 250 (6,750) sales and use tax
100-41940-361 BLDG/GRDS: GENERAL LIABILITY INSUR 0 0
100-41940-381 BLDG/GRDS: ELECTRIC UTILITY 6,196 6,964 10,328 8,927 3,453 9,000 9,000 0
100-41940-383 BLDG/GRDS: GAS UTILITY 4,252 3,382 4,799 6,698 1,458 5,000 5,000 0
100-41940-384 BLDG/GRDS: REFUSE/GARBAGE DISP 1,871 1,862 5,313 (502) 1,166 2,400 2,400 0
100-41940-415 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER EQUIP RENTAL 0 499 0 0 121 500 500 0
100-41940-520 BLDG/GRDS: BLDGS & STRUCTURES 0 0 637 5,591 2,784 5,000 5,000 0
100-41940-560 BLDG/GRDS: FURNITURE & FIXTURES 1,634 0 3,149 535 0 2,500 2,500 0
100-41940-580 BLDG/GRDS: OTHER EQUIPMENT 0 160 352 308 1,263 1,000 1,000 0

Total Bldg 97,440 97,170 106,016 32,848 19,687 61,600 32% 52,850 -14% (8,750)
100-41950-303 ENG: ENGINEERING FEE 13,193 14,114 22,511 19,613 5,337 25,000 25,000 0

Total Bldg 13,193 14,114 22,511 19,613 5,337 25,000 21% 25,000 0% 0
100-41960-142 INSUR: UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT 2,661 0 0 0
100-41960-150 INSUR: WORKERS COMP PREM 1,893 1,730 2,086 845 29,738 250 9,318 9,068 entire City less Fire Department
100-41960-152 INSUR: WORKERS COMP BENE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100-41960-361 INSUR: GENERAL LIABILITY INS 23,061 22,340 21,946 24,476 9,154 25,200 24,740 (460) entire City less Fire Department

Total Insur 24,954 24,070 24,032 27,982 38,892 25,450 153% 34,058 34% 8,608
100-41970-341 LEGAL PUB: EMPLOYMENT 0 636 231 235 435 500 250 (250)
100-41970-343 LEGAL PUB: OTHER ADVERTISING 0 0 0 38 0 250 250 0
100-41970-351 LEGAL PUB: LEGAL NOTICES 1,642 985 1,925 1,621 269 2,000 2,000 0
100-41970-354 LEGAL PUB: RECORDING FEES 0 654 128 441 0 500 500 0

Total Legal Pub 1,642 2,274 2,284 2,336 705 3,250 22% 3,000 -8% (250)
100-48205-810 DAMAGE DEPOSIT: REFUNDS/REIMB 5,200 6,205 7,720 7,554 5,900 5,000 8,000 3,000 this is a pass through account

37



Total Damage Deposit 5,200 6,205 7,720 7,554 5,900 5,000 8,000 60% 3,000
Total General Gov't 500,081.58 513,634.00 524,576.71 426,758.12 301,700 498,370 61% 508,643 2% 10,273

Public Safety
100-42101-310 HC SHERIFF: OTHER PROF SVCS 63,443 64,977 65,503 75,078 17,333 69,335 71,405 2,070

Total HC Sheriff 63,443 64,977 65,503 75,078 17,333 69,335 25% 71,405 3% 2,070
100-42102-310 WC SHERIFF: OTHER PROF SVCS 86,140 87,474 88,330 83,726 55,316 94,170 98,088 3,918

Total WC Sheriff 86,140 87,474 88,330 83,726 55,316 94,170 59% 98,088 4% 3,918
100-42210-103 FIRE ADMIN: PART-TIME WAGES 20,068 18,420 29,404 28,116 0 34,340 34,340 0
100-42210-122 FIRE ADMIN: FICA 1,244 1,142 1,823 1,743 0 2,129 2,129 0
100-42210-123 FIRE ADMIN: MEDICARE 291 267 426 408 0 515 515 0
100-42210-142 FIRE ADMIN: UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 0 0 0 0 22 0 0 0
100-42210-150 FIRE ADMIN: WORKERS COMP 5,556 6,731 7,042 6,679 10,071 10,000 10,000 0
100-42210-200 FIRE ADMIN: OFFICE SUPPLIES 301 0 359 167 0 200 200 0
100-42210-305 FIREADMIN: MEDICAL/PHYSICAL FEE 1,917 363 3,975 1,260 430 4,000 4,000 0
100-42210-306 FIRE ADMIN: DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,961 1,042 884 562 572 950 950 0
100-42210-361 FIRE ADMIN: GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,747 10,108 6,875 5,869 2,370 0 6,119 6,119 projected increase of approx 5%
100-42210-437 FIRE ADMIN: OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 0 1,172 89 10,000 0 (10,000)
100-42210-700 FIRE ADMIN: TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Fire 39,086 38,073 50,788 45,975 13,554 62,134 22% 58,253 -6% (3,881)
100-42220-221 FIRE EQUIP: EQUIPMENT PARTS 5,424 7,812 3,665 6,025 802 5,500 15,500 10,000 added amount subtracted from other misc.
100-42220-228 FIRE EQUIP: MEDICAL SUPPLIES 0 0 0 0 233 1,500 1,500 0
100-42220-240 FIRE EQUIP: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIPMENT 765 581 718 132 0 850 850 0
100-42220-260 FIRE EQUIP: UNIFORMS 11,315 7,551 8,599 780 5,801 4,500 4,500 0
100-42220-580 FIRE EQUIP: OTHER EQUIPMENT 5,942 4,959 4,315 2,056 836 5,000 5,000 0

Total Fire Equip 23,446 20,903 17,296 8,993 7,672 17,350 44% 27,350 58% 10,000
100-42240-208 FIRE TRAINING: TRAINING/INSTRUCTION 5,400 3,558 3,401 7,517 7,814 7,500 7,500 0
100-42240-310 FIRE TRAINING: OTHER PROF SVCS 3,000 Allina Medical Direction Contract
100-42240-331 FIRE TRAINING: TRAVEL EXPENSES 1,101 1,468 1,099 852 448 1,500 1,500 0

Total Fire TRG 6,501 5,025 4,500 8,369 8,262 9,000 92% 12,000 33% 3,000
100-42260-212 FIRE VEH: MOTOR FUELS 4,365 4,243 5,428 3,780 1,907 5,000 5,000 0
100-42260-220 FIRE VEH: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 3,071 4,985 7,438 14,342 3,632 9,000 9,000 0
100-42260-240 FIRE VEH: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIPMENT 386 1,845 2,335 1,860 0 2,000 2,000 0
100-42260-323 FIRE VEH: RADIO UNITS 2,025 2,250 1,107 2,661 5,035 7,465 7,465 0

Total Fire Veh 9,847 13,324 16,307 22,643 10,574 23,465 45% 23,465 0% 0
100-42280-215 FIRE BLDG: SHOP SUPPLIES 402 1,220 1,121 741 180 1,650 1,650 0
100-42280-220 FIRE BLDG: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 3,163 4,958 0 522 1,767 3,500 3,500 0
100-42280-321 FIRE BLDG: TELEPHONE 490 458 1,002 430 200 800 800 0
100-42280-325 FIRE BLDG: REAL ESTATE TAXES 172 165 138 0 0 175 175 0
100-42280-381 FIRE BLDG: ELECTRIC UTILITIES 5,207 4,450 4,696 3,722 1,537 5,000 5,000 0
100-42280-383 FIRE BLDG: GAS UTILITIES 2,298 1,483 2,569 3,673 3,516 2,600 3,000 400

Total Fire Bldg 11,732 12,733 9,526 9,088 7,200 13,725 52% 14,125 3% 400
100-42290-124 FRA: STATE AID PENSIONS 27,922 27,621 41,704 37,871 2,000 29,500 29,500 0 pass through fund
100-42290-125 FRA: OTHER RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 10,603 10,603 31% of prior year's state aid paid by City
100-42290-301 FRA: AUDITING & ACCTG FEES 4,475 0 10,683 5,800 6,500 6,000 6,500 500

Total FRA 32,397 27,621 52,387 43,671 8,500 35,500 24% 46,603 31% 11,103
100-42401-310 BLDG INSP: OTHER PROF SVCS 17,719 17,271 72,360 32,860 25,873 50,000 35,000 (15,000)

Total Bldg Insp 17,719 17,271 72,360 32,860 25,873 50,000 52% 35,000 -30% (15,000)
100-42700-310 ANIMAL CTRL: OTHER PROF SVCS 688 0 189 180 50 500 500 0

Total Animal Ctrl 688 0 189 180 50 500 10% 500 0% 0
100-42800-310 CEMETERY: CONTRACTED SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 150 2,500 2,350 Contract to organize cemetary records

Total Cemetery 0 0 0 0 0 150 0% 2,500 1567% 2,350
Total Public Safety 290,998 287,401 377,186 330,583 154,334 375,329 41% 389,289 4% 13,960

Public Works
100-43000-101 PW: FULL-TIME WAGES - REG 43,250 45,643 61,257 74,389 53,994 98,000 106,885 8,885
100-43000-102 PW: FULL-TIME WAGES - OT 1,340 296 0 1,000 1,000
100-43000-103 PW: PART-TIME WAGES 2,551 8,615 4,010 14,370 3,155 5,500 10,000 4,500 5 month summer help and snow plow drivers
100-43000-121 PW: PERA 3,133 3,498 3,462 5,168 4,500 7,400 8,016 616
100-43000-122 PW: FICA 2,679 3,274 3,846 5,688 3,915 6,400 6,627 227
100-43000-123 PW: MEDICARE 945 765 899 1,274 916 1,500 1,550 50

38



100-43000-132 PW: EMPLOYER PAID HSA. 1,710 1,539 2,717 0 (2,717)
100-43000-134 PW: EMPLOYER PAID LIFE 1,107 1,592 1,532 1,600 68
100-43000-142 PW: UNEMPLOYMENT BENE 0 0 0 369 238 300 500 200
100-43000-150 PW: WORKERS COMP PREM 3,316 3,084 2,985 5,969 10,673 7,500 0 (7,500)
100-43000-151 PW: HEALTH INS PREM 5,615 5,378 5,537 10,892 9,131 14,664 19,200 4,536
100-43000-152 PW: WORKERS COMP BENE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100-43000-208 PW: TRAINING & INSTRUCTION 95 1,140 0 225 950 1,500 1,500 0
100-43000-212 PW: MOTOR FUELS 8,257 9,113 10,110 8,790 7,000 7,000
100-43000-215 PW: SHOP SUPPLIES 1,980 929 4,608 3,569 5,000 5,000
100-43000-220 PW: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY (GENERAL) 4,347 5,806 7,116 8,726 6,000 6,000
100-43000-226 PW: SIGN REPAIR MATERIALS 1,500 1,500 consolidated all street sign resources here
100-43000-240 PW: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIP 1,374 2,022 1,986 4,432 2,500 2,500
100-43000-260 PW: UNIFORMS 552 830 907 1,974 2,000 2,000
100-43000-310 PW: OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,000 7,775 6,708 5,174 9,000 9,000 Compost cost and street sweepings
100-43000-321 PW: TELEPHONE 555 930 2,000 2,000 0
100-43000-325 PW: TAXES 0 0 0 119 200 200

Total Public Works 83,094 97,872 113,432 155,840 91,829 149,014 62% 192,078 29% 43,064
100-43100-212 HWYS & ROADS: MOTOR FUELS 3,796 10,000 (10,000) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-215 HWYS & ROADS: SHOP SUPPLIES 607 5,000 (5,000) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-220 HWYS & ROADS: REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLY 2,702 6,000 (6,000) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-240 HWYS & ROADS: SMALL TOOLS/EQUIP 638 2,500 (2,500) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-260 HWYS & ROADS: UNIFORMS 180 2,000 (2,000) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-310 HWYS & ROADS: OTHER PROF SVCS 2,143 3,000 (3,000) moved to 43000 fund number
100-43100-325 HWYS & ROADS: TAXES 39 200 (200) moved to 43000 fund number

Total Public Works 0 0 0 0 10,105 28,700 35% 0 -100% (28,700)
100-43121-224 PAVED STRS: STREET MAINT MTLS 283 811 5,636 13,661 71,059 71,000 50,000 (21,000)
100-43121-226 PAVED STRS: SIGN REPAIR MTLS 6,136 6,643 589 963 3,930 7,000 0 (7,000)

Total Paved Streets 6,419 7,454 6,225 14,625 74,989 78,000 96% 50,000 -36% (28,000)
100-43122-224 UNPAVED STRS: STREET MAINT MTLS 2,909 2,655 2,240 7,094 3,679 12,500 10,000 (2,500)
100-43122-226 UNPAVED STR: SIGN REPAIR MTLS 10,175 2,312 4,160 0 0 500 0 (500)

Total Unpaved Streets 13,083 4,967 6,400 7,094 3,679 13,000 28% 10,000 -23% (3,000)
100-43125-224 SNOW/ICE: STREET MAINT MTLS 12,786 2,246 600 11,926 16,000 15,000 15,000 0

Total Snow/Ice 12,786 2,246 600 11,926 16,000 15,000 107% 15,000 0% 0
100-43160-381 STR LTG: ELECTRICITY 29,063 26,483 27,036 25,125 12,719 27,000 27,000 0

Total Street Lights 29,063 26,483 27,036 25,125 12,719 27,000 47% 27,000 0% 0
100-43240-384 CITY CLEAN UP: REFUSE 0 487 828 887 1,784 2,000 2,000 0

Total City Clean Up 0 487 828 887 1,784 2,000 89% 2,000 0% 0
100-43245-384 RECYCLING: REFUSE DISPOSAL 14,540 18,637 25,354 33,931 17,664 35,000 35,000 0

Total Recycling 14,540 18,637 25,354 33,931 17,664 35,000 50% 35,000 0% 0
100-43260-310 WEED CTRL: OTHER PROF SVCS 374 1,087 818 0 0 0 0 0

Total Weed Control 374 1,087 818 0 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0
Total Public Works 159,359 159,233 180,693 249,428 228,768 347,714 66% 331,078 -5% (16,636)

Culture & Recreation
100-45186-437 SENIOR CENTER CONTRIBUTION 1,250 625 1,250 7,654 1,457 7,250 7,250 0

Total Senior Center Contribution 1,250 625 1,250 7,654 1,457 7,250 20% 7,250 0% 0
100-45200-208 PARKS: MOWING SERVICES CONTRACT 5,266 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100-45200-212 PARKS: MOTOR FUELS 1,958 82 3,000 3,000
100-45200-220 PARKS: REPAIRS/MAINT SUPPLIES 2,031 6,508 3,801 4,477 2,967 5,000 5,000 0
100-45200-225 PARKS: LANDSCAPING MATLS 1,572 2,352 4,055 1,788 1,793 3,300 4,000 700
100-45200-310 PARKS: OTHER PROF SVCS 8,000 FYCC Costs
100-45200-381 PARKS: ELECTRIC UTILITIES 817 825 2,729 1,932 972 1,100 2,000 900
100-45200-400 PARKS: MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 3,579 2,704 4,489 4,469 622 6,000 1,000 (5,000)
100-45200-440 PARKS: PROGRAMS 2,676 2,957 5,171 4,992 8,589 9,000 1,000 (8,000)
100-45200-441 PARKS: COMMUNITY GARDEN 4,516 3,467 2,772 283 179 1,000 0 (1,000)
100-45200-580 PARKS: OTHER EQUIPMENT 6,696 2,484 1,182 2,711 4,216 7,000 7,000 0

Total Parks 27,153 21,298 24,199 22,610 19,421 32,400 60% 31,000 -4% (1,400)
100-45500-437 ROY SIMMS LIBRARY: CONTRIB 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 1,750 7,000 7,000 0

Total Roy Simms Library 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 1,750 7,000 25% 7,000 0% 0
Total Culture & Rec 35,403 28,923 32,449 37,264 22,628 46,650 49% 45,250 -3% (1,400)

increase from orig. 2015 budget for annual crack 
fill and blow patching

39



Transfers Out
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: GENERAL CAPITAL 336,140 145,203 221,307 100,000 0 0 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: PARKS CAPITAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: FIRE DEPT CAPITAL 4,694 0 0 20,000 0 24,000 30,000 6,000
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: HISTORICAL FUND 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: CITY HALL FUND 30,000 100,000 30,000 30,000 0 0 0
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: EQUIPMENT FUND 32,500 20,000 32,500 32,500 0 55,000 65,000 10,000
100-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: STREET CAPITAL 53,000 100,000 275,000 100,000 0 190,000 215,000 25,000

Total Transfers Out 466,334 375,203 568,807 292,500 0 269,000 0% 310,000 15% 41,000

Transit
100-49800-310 TRANSIT: OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,107 0 0 0

Total Transit 1,107 0 0 #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 0

Total Fund Expend. 1,452,175 1,364,394 1,683,711 1,337,640 707,430 1,537,063 46% 1,584,260 3.07% 47,197

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (79,838) 42,068 (70,692) 207,428 117,165 18,536 16,612

40



2016 Estimated Market Values
City of Corcoran 26.86%

City of Greenfield 17.27%
City of Hanover 43.31%

Rockford Township 12.56%
100.00%

Total Calls by Year 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Total Average
City of Corcoran 23 33 25 24 34 139 27.8 21.09%

City of Greenfield 16 15 13 13 12 69 13.8 10.47%
City of Hanover 84 64 71 77 73 369 73.8 55.99%

Rockford Township 7 11 14 22 28 82 16.4 12.44%
130 123 123 136 147 659 131.8 100.00%

2016 Budget:
246,102 Total Budgeted Expenditures (General Fund, Bonds, Capital Transfer)
(29,500) State FRA Pension Contribution

($10,000) Hanover's assumption of St. Michael's share
$206,602 Amount to be allocated

Payment from City is based on dividing the budget in half and then determining costs based on Market Value and Call Hours.
MV % MV Pymt. CH % CH Pymt. Payment

City of Corcoran 26.86% 27,743.62 21.09% 21,788.79 49,532.41
City of Greenfield 17.27% 17,840.41 10.47% 10,816.02 28,656.43
City of Hanover 43.31% 44,737.23 55.99% 57,842.18 102,579.41
Rockford Township 12.56% 12,979.55 12.44% 12,853.82 25,833.37

100.00% 103,300.81 100.00% 103,300.81 206,601.62
103,300.81 103,300.81

*2015 Payment Per City: 2016 Payment Per City:
City of Corcoran $44,841.83 City of Corcoran $49,532.41
City of Greenfield $26,352.99 City of Greenfield $28,656.43
City of Hanover $107,831.53 City of Hanover $112,579.41
Rockford Township $23,562.65 Rockford Township $25,833.37

$202,589.00 $216,601.62
*2015 contract costs based solely on market values

$69,189,000

$369,956,700

(Includes $10,000)(Includes $15,000)

$681,588,400$311,631,700

$225,991,400
$85,640,300

TOTAL
$183,055,000
$117,712,700
$295,180,400
$85,640,300

HC
$183,055,000

WC

$117,712,700

41



Acct No. Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
311-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 74,585 80,380 79,197 79,457 40,934 39,769 38,603
311-33410 MV CREDIT 111 112 0 0 0
311-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 1,197 1,121 1,340 504 50 100 100
311-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 0 0 0 0 413 400 400
311-39100 BOND PROCEEDS 0 0 0 0 0
311-39200 TRANSFERS IN 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 75,892 81,613 80,537 79,962 41,397 40,269 39,103 -3%

Expenditure Accounts
311-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 60,000 65,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 30,000 30,000
311-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 18,920 17,260 15,370 13,270 11,030 8,985 8,430
311-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 425 425 425 495 495 550 495

Total Expenditures 79,345 82,685 85,795 83,765 81,525 39,535 38,925 -2%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (3,453) (1,072) (5,258) (3,803) (40,128) 734 178 -76%

Acct No. Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
312-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 21,420 15,400 15,000 19,765 19,929 18,291 22,982
312-33410 MV CREDIT 32 21 0 0 0 0
312-36100 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 9,216 10,517 8,236 7,919 10,205 6,900 6,017
312-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 154 419 235 189 29 50 50
312-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 0 0 0 0 229 300 300
312-39100 BOND PROCEEDS 11,835 0 0 0 0 0
312-39200 TRANSFERS IN 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Revenue 42,657 26,357 23,471 27,873 30,392 25,541 29,349 15%

Expenditure Accounts
312-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 0 15,000 17,000 21,000 21,000 19,000 19,000

City of Hanover

2008A GO CIP Refunding Bond Fund

2009A GO Refunding Bond Fund

42



312-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 5,738 7,556 7,108 6,576 5,988 5,134 4,868
312-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 425 425 0 425 425 500 425

Total Expenditures 6,163 22,981 24,108 28,001 27,413 24,634 24,293 -1%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures 36,494          3,376            (637)             (128)             2,979            907 5,056 457%

Acct No. Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
313-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 0 74,516 75,000 74,940 62,653 49,297 36,020
313-33410 MV CREDIT 0 106 0 0 0 0
313-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS -1 -480 100 -245 -29 0 0
313-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 0 0 0 0 -349.04 0 0
313-39100 BOND PROCEEDS 350,920 0 0 0 0 0
313-39200 TRANSFERS IN 0 0 0 0 5000 0 0

Revenue Accounts 350,919 74,141 75,100 74,696 67,275 49,297 36,020 -27%

Expenditure Accounts
313-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 342,547 58,487 62,619 64,855 67,145 44,642 32,805
313-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 2,229 13,853 9,722 7,486 5,196 2,272 1,500
313-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 6,216 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 350,992 72,340 72,341 72,341 72,341 46,914 34,305 -27%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (73)               1,801            2,759            2,355            (5,066)          2,383 1,715 -28%

Acct No. Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
314-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 0 74,516 75,000 34,403 74,174 110,245 125,400
314-33410 MV CREDIT 0 106 0 0 0 0
314-36100 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 0 0 0 79,169 93,196 61,100 57,161
314-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS -1 -480 100 2,756 417.14 300 300
314-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 4,553 4,000 4,000
314-39100 BOND PROCEEDS 350,920 0 0 0 0 0

2010 GO CIP Equipment Certificates Bond Fund

2011 GO Improvement Crossover Refunding Bond Fund

43



314-39200 TRANSFERS IN 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Accounts 350,919 74,141 75,100 116,328 172,341 175,645 186,861 6%

Expenditure Accounts
314-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 342,547 58,487 62,619 80,000 125000 125,000 140,000
314-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 2,229 13,853 9,722 27,375 25,775 22,025 20,775
314-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 6,216 0 0 425 495 500 495

BALANCING (Fund 309 residuals) 32,144 0
Total Expenditures 350,992 72,340 72,341 107,800 151,270 179,669 161,270 -10%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (73)               1,801            2,759            8,528            21,071          (4,024) 25,591 -736%

Acct No. Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Expenditure Accounts
602-47000-601 PRINCIPAL 93,000 95,000
602-47000-611 INTEREST 13,351 11,221

Total Expenditures 106,351 106,221 0%

217,602 223,006 2%
Total Debt Services Revenues 290,752 291,334 0%

397,103 365,014 -8%

Minnesota PFA Loan

Total Debt Services Expenditures

Total Debt Services Tax Revenue

44



STATE of MINNESOTA Return by:  September 30, 2015
COUNTY of WRIGHT District Taxes Voted
CITY OF HANOVER

To the Auditor of Wright County:  I hereby certify that the Council for the City of Hanover, County of Wright, Minnesota, did at a meeting on 
____________________________ levy the following amount to be raised by taxation for the City of Hanover for the payable year 2016.

2015 Budget 
Requirement 2015 LGA

2015 Other 
Resources

2015 Tax 
Levy #  Fund

2016 Budget 
Requirement 2016 LGA

2016 Other 
Resources

2016 Certified 
Levy

1,264,256 105,859 162,669 995,728 5 Rev 1,354,771      107,496 171,889 1,075,386      
202,588 106,964 95,624 7 Fire Prot. 246,102 133,522 112,579         

- - 37 Tax Abatement - -

290,752 73,150 217,602 50 Bonded Debt 258,793 68,328 223,006         

1,757,596 105,859 342,783 1,308,954 Total 1,859,666 107,496 373,739 1,410,972

Market Value Based Referendum Levy $_____________
* Do not include any Disparity Reduction Aid or Fiscal Disparity taxes.

Dated this ________ day of _________________, 2015.

Proposed Levy Certification

2015 Proposed 2016 Proposed

Brian Hagen, City Administrator

45



Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual
2015 Actual 

7/31/15 2015 Budget
% of 

Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
201-31000 PROPERTY TAXES 50,060 47,548 47,083 45,296 43,767 27,046 49,000 49,000
201-31010 TAX ABATEMENT 3,766 4,054 4,117 4,022 4,000 0 0 0
201-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 1,173 949 1,078 652 102 565 100 100
201-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 0 0 0 0 1,074 323 1,100 1,100
201-33410 MV CREDIT 46

Total Revenue 54,998 52,552 52,277 49,970 48,989 27,934 50,200 56% 50,200 0%

Expenditure Accounts
201-41330-111 COMMITTEE WAGES/MEETINGS 2,283 2,783 720 1,860 2,010 0 3,000 3,000
201-41330-306 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 0 0 250 1,198 487 1,000 1,000
201-41330-310 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 8,523 12,077 18,794 19,111 23,850 7,417 25,000 25,000
201-41330-437 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS 5,140 2,167 10,263 2,000 4,537 3,562 7,500 5,200
201-41570-210 PURCH: SUPPLIES 1,038 1,015 1,000 500 0 0 2,100 1,000
201-46500-811 ABATEMENT: TREEHOUSE/REIMB 3,193 3,304 3,469 4,988 0 0 0 0
201-49360-700 TRANSFER OUT: BUSINESS INCENTIVE 40,000 10,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 15,000 15,000

Total Expenditures 60,177 31,346 49,247 43,708 46,595 11,466 53,600 21% 50,200 -6%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (5,178) 21,206 3,031 6,261 2,394 16,468 (3,400) 0

Account Description 2010 Actual 2011 Actual 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual
2015 Actual 

7/31/15 2015 Budget
% of 

Budget 2016 Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
205-33400 STATE GRANTS & AIDS 0 0 0 120,115 43,911 0 50,000 50,000
205-36200 MISC REVENUES 0 0 0 0 100 0 0 0
205-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 3,035 3,329 3,321 2,950 1,693 1,941 1,000 2,000
205-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 0 0 0 0 1,733 778 3,000 2,000
205-36230 CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
205-39203 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 40,000 10,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 0 15,000 15,000

Total Revenue 43,035 13,329 18,321 138,065 62,437 2,719 69,000 4% 69,000 0%

Hanover Economic Development Authority
Special Revenue Fund

Hanover Economic Development Authority
Business Incentive Fund

46



Expenditure Accounts
205-46500-810 EDA BIF: RENT REIMBURSEMENT 0 0 9,591 4,800 0 0 7,200 7,200
205-47100-601 LOAN PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
205-47100-611 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
205-49300-318 EDA BIF: MATCHING GRANT 0 0 1,000 143,616 22,367 0 50,000 50,000
205-49300-319 EDA: LOANS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 0 0 10,591 148,416 22,367 0 57,200 0% 57,200 0%

Total Revenue Over Expenditures 43,035 13,329 7,730 (10,351) 40,070 2,719 11,800 11,800

47



STATE of MINNESOTA Return by:  September 30, 2015
COUNTY of WRIGHT District Taxes Voted
HANOVER EDA

To the Auditor of Wright County:  I hereby certify that the Board for the Hanover EDA, County of Wright, Minnesota, did at a meeting on 
____________________________ levy the following amount to be raised by taxation for the Hanover EDA for the payable year 2016.

2015 Budget 
Requirement 2015 LGA

2015 Other 
Resources 2015 Tax Levy #  Fund

2016 Budget 
Requirement 2016 LGA

2016 Other 
Resources

2016 Certified 
Levy

53,600 4600 49,000 5 Administration 50,200 1,200 49,000

53,600 49,000 Total 50,200 1,200 49,000

Market Value Based Referendum Levy $_____________
* Do not include any Disparity Reduction Aid or Fiscal Disparity taxes.

Dated this ________ day of _________________, 2014.

Proposed Levy Certification

2015 Proposed 2016 Proposed

Brian Hagen, City Administrator
48



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Capacity 3,282,608 3,076,226 2,808,041 2,547,684 2,367,113 2,385,758 2,644,071 2,850,350
Levy 1,277,851 1,277,851 1,270,270 1,268,303 1,268,286 1,268,280 1,308,954 1,410,972
Rate 38.93% 41.54% 45.24% 49.78% 53.58% 53.16% 49.51% 49.50%

3,282,608 
3,076,226 

2,808,041 

2,547,684 
2,367,113 2,385,758 

2,644,071 

2,850,350 

1,277,851 1,277,851 1,270,270 1,268,303 1,268,286 1,268,280 1,308,954 
1,410,972 

38.93% 
41.54% 

45.24% 

49.78% 
53.58% 53.16% 

49.51% 49.50% 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Capacity Levy Rate

Tax Capacity, Levy, and Rate 

Ta
x 

Ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 L
ev

y 

Ci
ty

 T
ax

 R
at

e 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF HANOVER 
 

WRIGHT / HENNEPIN COUNTIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONNEL POLICY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted by City Council 
November 3, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

120-1 
 

239



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Table of Contents 
 
 
Title Page ............................................................................................................................................... 120-1 

Table of Contents ................................................................................................................................... 120-2 

120.01 Purpose ........................................................................................................................ 120-3 

120.02 Scope ........................................................................................................................... 120-3 

120.03 EEO Policy Statement ……………………………………………………………………...120.3 

120.04 Definitions .................................................................................................................... 120-3 

120.05 Citywide Work Rules and Code of Conduct ................................................................. 120-5 

120.06 Data Practices Advisory ............................................................................................... 120-7 

120.07 Employee Recruitment and Selection .......................................................................... 120-9 

120.08 Organization ............................................................................................................... 120-11 

120.09 Hours of Work ............................................................................................................ 120-12 

120.10 Compensation ............................................................................................................ 120-12 

120.11 Performance Reviews ................................................................................................ 120-16 

120.12 Benefits ...................................................................................................................... 120-17 

120.13 Holidays ..................................................................................................................... 120-17 

120.14 Leaves ........................................................................................................................ 120-18 

120.15 Sexual Harassment Prevention ................................................................................. 120-24 

120.16 Separation from Service ............................................................................................ 120-25 

120.17 Discipline .................................................................................................................... 120-26 

120.18 Grievance ................................................................................................................... 120-27 

120.19 Employee Education and Training ............................................................................. 120-28 

120.20 Outside Employment .................................................................................................. 120-30 

120.21 Drug Free Workplace ................................................................................................. 120-31 

120.22 Safety Policy .............................................................................................................. 120-32 

120.23 City Driving Policy ...................................................................................................... 120-32 

120.24 Electronic Communications Resources ..................................................................... 120-32 

120.25 Officials Under Workers Compensation Act .............................................................. 120-36 

120.26 Emergency Closing Policy ......................................................................................... 120.36 

120.27 Authority ..................................................................................................................... 120-36 

120-2 
 

240



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

120.01 PURPOSE 

The purpose of these policies is to establish a uniform and equitable system of personnel administration 
for employees of the City of Hanover.  They should not be construed as contract terms.  The policies are 
not intended to cover every situation that might arise and can be amended at any time at the sole discretion 
of the City.  These policies supersede all previous personnel policies. 
 
Where these policies differ from state or federal law, the applicable law will be followed. 
 
Except as otherwise prohibited by law, the City of Hanover has the right to terminate any employee at any 
time for any or no reason. Employees may similarly terminate employment at any time for any reason or 
without giving notice.   
 
After reading the personnel policy, the employee will be required to sign and submit an acknowledgement 
form indicating they have read and understand policy.  All new and existing employees will be required to 
sign an acknowledgement form when any part of the current policy is revised.   
 
 
120.02 SCOPE 
 
These policies apply to all employees of the City.  Except where specifically noted, these policies do not 
apply to: 
 

1. Elected Officials; 

2. Members of City Boards, Commissions, and Committees; 

3. Consultants or Contractors, including City Attorney; 

4. Volunteer fire personnel and other volunteer personnel; and 

5. Emergency employees 

 
Departments may have special work rules deemed necessary by the supervisor and approved by the City 
Administrator for the achievement of objectives of that department.  Each employee will be given a copy of 
such work rules, if they exist, by the department upon hiring and such rules will be further explained and 
enforcement discussed with the employee by the employee’s immediate supervisor.   
 
 
120.03   EEO POLICY STATEMENT 
 
The City of Hanover is committed to providing equal opportunity in all areas of employment, including but 
not limited to recruitment, hiring, demotion, promotion, transfer, selection, lay-off, disciplinary action, 
termination, compensation and selection for training.  The City of Hanover will not discriminate against any 
employee or job applicant on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual 
orientation, disability, age, marital status, genetic information, status with regard to public assistance, 
veteran status, familial status, or membership on a local human rights commission. 
 
 
120.04 DEFINITIONS 
 
For purposes of these policies, the following definitions will apply: 

 
Authorized Hours:  
The number of hours an employee is hired to work.  Actual hours worked during any given pay 
period may be different than authorized hours, depending on workload demands or other factors, 
and upon approval of the employee’s supervisor.   

120-3 
 

241



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
Benefits  
Privileges granted to qualified employees in the form of paid leave and/or insurance coverage. 
 
Benefit Earning Employees  
Employees who are eligible for at least a pro-rated portion of City provided benefits.  Such 
employees must be year-round employees who work at least twenty (20) hours per week on a 
regular basis.   
 
Demotion  
The movement of an employee from one job class to another within the City, where the maximum 
salary for the new position is lower than that of the employee’s former position.   
 
Direct Deposit 
As permitted by state law, all City employees are required to participate in direct deposit, with the 
exception of volunteer fire personnel. 

 
Employee  
An individual who has successfully completed all stages of the selection process including the 
training period. 
 
Exempt Employee  
Employees who are not covered by the overtime provisions of the federal or state Fair Labor 
Standards Act. 
 
FICA (Federal Insurance Contributions Act)  
FICA is the federal requirement that a certain monetary amount be automatically withheld from 
employees’ earnings.  Specifically, FICA requires an employee contribution for Social Security and 
for Medicare.  The City contributes a matching amount on behalf of each employee.  Certain 
employees are exempt or partially exempt from these withholdings.  These percentages withheld 
are set by the IRS and may change from year to year. 
 
Fiscal Year  
The period from January 1 to December 31. 
 
Full-time Employee  
Employees who are required to work forty (40) or more hours per week year-round in an ongoing 
position. 
 
Hours of Operation  
The City’s regular hours of operation are set by the City Council and may vary by department. 
 
Management Employee  
An employee who is responsible for managing a department or division of the City.  
 
Non-exempt Employee  
Employees who are covered by the federal or state Fair Labor Standards Act.  Such employees 
are normally eligible for overtime or compensatory time at one and one-half (1.5) times their regular 
hourly wage for all hours worked over forty (40) hours in any given workweek.   
 
Part-time Employee  
Employees who are required to work less than forty (40) hours per week year-round in an ongoing 
position. 
 
Pay Period  

120-4 
 

242



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

A fourteen (14) day period beginning at 12:00 a.m. (midnight) on Saturday through 11:59 p.m.  on 
Friday, fourteen (14) days later. 

 
PERA (Public Employees Retirement Association)  
Statewide pension program in which all City employees meeting program requirements must 
participate in accordance with Minnesota law.  The City and the employee each contribute to the 
employee’s retirement account.   
 
Promotion  
Movement of an employee from one job class to another within the City, where the maximum salary 
for the new position is higher than that of the employee’s former position. 
 
Reclassify  
Movement of a job from one classification to another classification because of a significant change 
in the position's duties and responsibilities. 
 
Seasonal Employee  
Employees who work only part of the year (one hundred (100) days or less) to conduct seasonal 
work.  Seasonal employees may be assigned to work a full-time or part-time schedule.  Seasonal 
employees do not earn benefits or credit for seniority.   
 
Service Credit  
Time worked for the City.  An employee begins earning service credit on the first day worked for 
the City.  Some forms of leave will create a break in service.   
 
Temporary Employee  
Employees who work in temporary positions.  Temporary jobs might have a defined start and end 
date or may be for the duration of a specific project.  Temporary employees may be assigned to 
work a full-time or part-time schedule.  Temporary employees do not earn benefits or credit for 
seniority.   
 
Training Period  
A six (6) month period at the start of employment with the City (or at the beginning of a promotion, 
reassignment or transfer) that is designated as a period within which to learn the job.  The training 
period is the last part of the selection process.  Employees with Veteran’s Preference are excluded 
from this in accordance with state law. 
 
Transfer  
Movement of an employee from one City position to another of equivalent pay  
 
Workweek  
A workweek is seven (7) consecutive twenty-four (24) hour periods.  For most employees the 
workweek will run from Saturday through the following Friday.  With the approval of the City 
Administrator, departments may establish a different workweek based on coverage and service 
delivery needs (e.g., public works and maintenance).   
 

 
120.05 CITYWIDE WORK RULES AND CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Subd. 1.  Conduct as a City Employee.  In accepting City employment, employees become representatives 
of the City and are responsible for assisting and serving the citizens for whom they work.  An employee's 
primary responsibility is to serve the residents of Hanover.  Employees should exhibit conduct that is ethical, 
professional, responsive, and of standards becoming of a City employee.  To achieve this goal, employees 
must adhere to established policies, rules, and procedures and follow the instructions of their supervisors. 
 

120-5 
 

243



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

The following are job requirements for every position at the City of Hanover.  All employees are expected 
to:  

• Perform assigned duties to the best of their ability at all times.   
 
• Render prompt and courteous service to the public at all times.   

 
• Read, understand and comply with the rules and regulations as set forth in these Personnel 

Policies as well as those of their departments.   
 

• Conduct themselves with decorum toward both residents and staff and respond to inquiries 
and information requests with patience and every possible courtesy.   

 
• Report any and all unsafe conditions to the immediate supervisor.  

  
• Maintain good attendance. 

 
Subd. 2.  Attendance and Absence.  The operations and standards of service in the City of Hanover require 
that employees be at work unless valid reasons warrant absence.  In order for a team to function efficiently 
and effectively, employees must be on the job.  Attendance is an essential function of every City position. 

 
Employees who are going to be absent from work are required to notify their supervisor as soon as possible 
in advance of the absence.  In case of unexpected absence, employees should call their supervisor before 
the scheduled starting time.  If the supervisor is not available at the time, the employee should leave a 
message that includes a telephone number where he/she can be reached and/or contact any other 
individual who was designated by the supervisor.  Failure to use established reporting process will be 
grounds for disciplinary action.  Departments may establish more specific reporting procedures. 

 
The employee must call the supervisor on each day of an absence extending beyond one (1) day unless 
arrangements otherwise have been made with the supervisor.  Employees who are absent for three (3) 
days or more and who do not report the absence in accordance with this policy, will be considered to have 
voluntarily resigned not in good standing.  The City may waive this rule if extenuating circumstances 
warranted such behavior.  This policy does not preclude the City from administering discipline for 
unexcused absences of less than three (3) days.   
 
Subd. 3.  Access to and Use of City Property.  Any employee who has authorized possession of keys, tools, 
cell phones, pagers, or other City-owned equipment must register his/her name and the serial number (if 
applicable) or identifying information about the equipment with his/her supervisor.  All such equipment must 
be turned in and accounted for by any employee leaving employment with the City in order to resign in good 
standing.   

 
Employees are responsible for the safekeeping and care of all such equipment.  The duplication of keys 
owned by the City is prohibited unless authorized by the City Administrator.  Any employee found having 
an unauthorized duplicate key will be subject to disciplinary action.   
 
Subd. 4.  Appearance.  Departments may establish dress codes for employees as part of departmental 
rules.  Personal appearance should be appropriate to the nature of the work and contacts with other people 
and should present a positive image to the public.  Clothing, jewelry or other items that could present a 
safety hazard are not acceptable in the workplace.  Employees who spend a portion of the day in the field 
need to dress in a professional manner appropriate to their jobs, as determined by their supervisor. 
 
Subd. 5.  Conflict of Interest.  City employees are to remove themselves from situations in which they would 
have to take action or make a decision where that action or decision could be a perceived or actual conflict 
of interest.  Under no circumstances shall an employee use his/her public position to secure special 
privileges or exemptions for himself/herself or others; use his/her position to solicit personal gifts or favors; 
or use his/her public position for personal gain.  If an employee has any question about whether a conflict 
of interest exists, he/she should consult with the City Administrator.   

120-6 
 

244



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
Subd. 6.  Gifts.  Except as permitted pursuant to Minnesota Statute 471.895, no employee shall accept or 
receive any gift of substance, whether in the form of money, services, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, 
promise, or any other form, under circumstances in which it could be reasonably expected to influence the 
person, the person’s performance of official action, or be intended as a reward for the person’s official 
action. 
 
Subd. 7.  Disclosure of Non-Public Data.  No employee shall disclose to the public, or use for the person’s 
or another person’s personal gain, information that was gained by reason of the person’s public position if 
the information was not public data or was discussed at a closed session of the city council or committee.  
In addition, no employee shall disclose information that was received, discussed, or decided in conference 
with the city’s legal counsel that is protected by the attorney-client privilege unless a majority of the city 
council has authorized the disclosure. 
 
Subd. 8.  Falsification of Records.  Any employee who makes false statements or commits, or attempts to 
commit, fraud in an effort to prevent the impartial application of these policies will be subject to immediate 
disciplinary action up to and including termination and potential criminal prosecution.   
 
Subd. 9.  Personal Telephone Calls.  Personal telephone calls are to be made or received only when truly 
necessary.  They are not to interfere with City work and are to be completed as quickly as possible.  Any 
personal long distance call costs will be paid for by the employee.  Please refer to the Electronic 
Communications Resources Policy for additional information. 
 
Subd. 10.  Political Activity.  City employees have the right to express their views and to pursue legitimate 
involvement in the political system.  However, no City employee will directly or indirectly, during hours of 
employment, solicit or receive funds for political purposes.  Moreover, City employees are prohibited from 
using City facilities (such as break or eating areas, conference rooms, or offices) or City property (including, 
but not limited to, telephones, computers, facsimile machines, e-mail systems, interoffice or voicemail, 
photocopiers, postage, paper or other office supplies) during hours of employment for any political 
campaign activity.  This policy does not prohibit employees from using facilities or property to cast a ballot 
or vote or attend political or campaign functions held at a City facility outside of work hours. 
 
Subd. 11.  Smoking.  The City of Hanover observes and supports the Minnesota Clean Indoor Air Act.  All 
City buildings and vehicles, in their entirety, shall be designated as tobacco free, meaning that smoking in 
any form (through the use of tobacco products (pipes, cigars and cigarettes) or “vaping” with e-cigarettes 
is prohibited while in a City facility or vehicle.  Smoking of any kind, including pipes, cigars, cigarettes, 
vaping with e-cigarettes and the use of chewing tobacco is prohibited for employees while on duty.  
Employees 18 and over are allowed to smoke only during their breaks and lunch, and only in areas 
designated for that purpose. 
 
 
120.06 DATA PRACTICES ADVISORY 
 
Employee records are maintained in a location designated by the City Administrator.  Personnel data is 
kept in personnel files, finance files and benefit/medical files.  Information is used to administer employee 
salary and benefit programs, process payroll, complete federal and state reports, document employee 
performance, etc. 
 
Employees have the right to know what data is retained, where it is kept, and how it is used.  All employee 
data will be received, retained and disseminated according to the Minnesota Government Data Practices 
Act. 
 
 
Media Requests.   All city employees have a responsibility to help communicate accurate and 
timely information to the public in a professional manner.  Requests for private data or 

120-7 
 

245



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

information outside of the scope of an individual’s job duties should be routed to the appropriate 
department or to the data practices authority.  Any employee who identifies a mistake in 
reporting should bring the error to the City Administrator or other appropriate staff.  Regardless 
of whether the communication is in the employee’s official city role or in a personal capacity, 
employees must comply with all laws related to trademark, copyright, software use etc. 
 
With the exception of routine events and basic information that is readily available to the public, 
all requests for interviews or information from the media are to be routed through the City 
Administrator.  No City employee is authorized to speak on behalf of the City without prior 
authorization from the City Administrator or his/her designee.  Media requests include anything 
intended to be published or viewable to others in some form such as television, radio, 
newspapers, newsletters, and web sites.  When responding to media requests, employees should 
follow these steps: 

1. If the request is for routine or public information (such as a meeting time or agenda) 
provide the information and notify the City Administrator of the request. 

2. If the request is regarding information about city personnel, potential litigation, 
controversial issues, an opinion on a City matter, or if an employee is unsure if the 
request is a “routine” question, forward the request to the City Administrator.  An 
appropriate response would be, “I’m sorry, I don’t have the full information regarding 
that issue.  Let me take some basic information and submit your request to the 
appropriate person who will get back to you as soon as he/she can.”  Then ask the media 
representative’s name, questions, deadline and contact information.   

 
All news releases concerning City personnel will be the responsibility of the City Administrator. 
 
When/if the City Administrator authorizes a staff person to communicate on behalf of the city in 
interviews, publications, news releases, on social media sites, and related communications, 
employees must: 
 Identify themselves as representing the city.  Account names on social media sites must 

be clearly connected to the city and approved by the City Administrator. 
 All information must be respectful, professional and truthful.  Corrections must be issued 

when needed. 
 Personal opinions generally don’t belong in official city statements.  Once exception is 

communications related to promoting a city service.  For example, if an employee posted 
on the city’s Facebook page, “My family visited Hill Park this weekend and really 
enjoyed the new band shelter.”  Employees who have been approved to use social media 
sites on behalf of the city should seek assistance from the City Administrator on this 
topic. 

 Employees need to notify the City Administrator if they will be using their personal 
technology (cell phones, home computer, cameras, etc.) for city business.  Employees 
should be aware that the data transmitted or stored may be subject to the Data Practices 
Act.   

 
It is important for city employee to remember that the personal communications of employees 
may reflect on the city, especially if employees are commenting on city business. The following 
guidelines apply to personal communications including various forms such as social media 

120-8 
 

246



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

(Facebook, Twitter, blogs, YouTube, etc.), letters to the editor of newspapers, and personal 
endorsements. 
 
 Remember that what you write is public, and will be so for a long time. It may also be 

spread to large audiences. Use common sense when using email or social media sites.  It 
is a good idea to refrain from sending or posting information that you would not want 
your boss or other employees to read, or that you would be embarrassed to see in the 
newspaper.  

 The City of Hanover expects its employees to be truthful, courteous and respectful 
towards supervisors, co-workers, citizens, customers and other persons associated with 
the city.  Do not engage in name-calling or personal attacks. 

 If you publish something related to city business, identify yourself and use a disclaimer 
such as, “I am an employee of the city of Hanover  However, these are my own opinions 
and do not represent those of the City of Hanover.” 

 City resources, working time, or official city positions cannot be used for personal profit 
or business interests, or to participation in personal political activity.  For example, a 
building inspector could not use the city’s logo, email or working time to promote his/her 
side business as a plumber. 

 Personal social media account name or email names should not be tied to the city 
(e.g., city nameCop). 

  
 
120.07 EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 
 
Subd. 1.  Scope.  The City Administrator or a designee will manage the hiring process for positions within 
the City.  While the hiring process may be coordinated by staff, the City Council is responsible for the final 
hiring decision and must approve all hires to City employment.  All hires will be made according to merit 
and fitness related to the position being filled. 

 
Subd. 2.  Features of Recruitment System.  The City Administrator or designee will determine if a vacancy 
will be filled through an open recruitment or by promotion, transfer or some other method.  This 
determination will be made on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Application for employment will generally be made on application forms provided by the City.  Other 
materials in lieu of a formal application may be accepted in certain recruitment situations as determined by 
the City Administrator or designee.  Supplemental questionnaires may be required in certain situations.  All 
candidates must complete and submit the required application materials by the posted deadline, in order 
to be considered for the position.  The deadline for application may be extended by the City Administrator.  
Unsolicited applications will not be kept on file.  Veteran’s Preference will be applied in accordance with 
state law where positions are filled through open enrollment. 
 
Applicant qualifications will be evaluated in one or more of the following ways: training and experience 
rating; written test; oral test or interview; performance or demonstrative test; physical agility test, or other 
appropriate job-related exam.  
 
The City Administrator or designee will establish minimum qualifications for each position with input from 
the appropriate supervisor.  To be eligible to participate in the selection process a candidate must meet 
the minimum qualifications.  
 
Position vacancies may be filled on an “acting” basis as needed.  The City Council will approve all acting 
appointments.  Pay rate adjustments, if any, will be determined by the City Council. 
 

120-9 
 

247



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Subd. 4.  Pre-Employment Medical Examinations.  The City Administrator or designee may determine that 
a pre-employment medical examination, which may include a psychological evaluation, is necessary to 
determine fitness to perform the essential functions of any City position.  Where a medical examination is 
required, an offer of employment is contingent upon successful completion of the medical exam. 
 
When a pre-employment medical exam is required, it will be required of all candidates who are finalists 
and/or who are offered employment for a given job class.  Information obtained from the medical exam will 
be treated as confidential medical records. 

 
When required, the medical exam will be conducted by a licensed physician designated by the City with the 
cost of the exam paid by the City.  (Psychological/psychiatric exams will be conducted by a licensed 
psychologist or psychiatrist.) The physician will notify the City Administrator or designee that a candidate 
either is or isn’t medically able to perform the essential functions of the job, with or without accommodations 
and whether the candidate passed a drug test, if applicable.  If the candidate requires accommodation to 
perform one or more of the essential functions of the job, the City Administrator or designee will confer with 
the physician and candidate regarding reasonable and acceptable accommodations. 

 
If a candidate is rejected for employment based on the results of the medical exam, he/she will be notified 
of this determination. 
 
The City of Hanover values each employee and recognizes each person's need for a safe and healthy work 
environment. Employees who use illegal drugs and abuse alcohol tend to be less productive, less reliable, 
more prone to accidents, and more prone to greater absenteeism; resulting in the potential for increased 
accidents, costs, and risks to the City and to you as an employee. It is the intent of the City to provide a 
drug-free working environment to help ensure the safety and health of the City employees and others that 
do business with the City or come in contact with employees. A drug-free workplace is also conducive to 
efficient and productive work standards and creates a favorable public image. City employees who drive 
and/or operate equipment under a commercial driver’s license (CDL) are subject, by law, to specific drug 
and alcohol testing requirements. The City will comply with the drug and alcohol testing requirements of the 
U.S. Department of Transportation pursuant to the Commercial Driver's License Regulations, Code of 
Federal Regulations, Title 49 (49 CFR), Part 382; Title 49 (49 CFR), Part 40; and any other applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations. This policy applies to all full-time, regular part-time, part-time and 
temporary City employees. A list of employee positions subject to CDL drug and alcohol testing is attached 
as Appendix A to this policy.   
 
Subd. 5.  Selection Process.  The selection process will be coordinated by the City Administrator or 
designee, subject to final hiring approval of the City Council.  Any, all or none of the candidates may be 
interviewed. 
 
The process for hiring seasonal and temporary employees may be delegated to the appropriate supervisor 
with each hire subject to final City Council approval.  Except where prohibited by law, seasonal and 
temporary employees may be terminated by the supervisor at any time, subject to City Council approval. 
 
The Minnesota Veterans Preference Act (VPA) grants most Veterans a limited preference over non-
Veterans in hiring and promotion for most Minnesota public employment positions, as granted in Minnesota 
Statutes 197.48, 43A.11, and 197.455. These statues may apply to certain spouses of Veterans. The 
Minnesota VPA Statutes apply to Minnesota public employment, "civil service laws, charter provisions, 
ordinances, rules or regulations of a county, city, town, school district, or other municipality or political 
subdivision of this state." 
 
Minnesota Statute 197.447 defines a Veteran as "a citizen of the United States or a resident alien who has 
been separated under honorable conditions from any branch of the armed forces of the United States after 
having served on active duty for 181 consecutive days or by reason of disability incurred while serving on 
active duty, or who has met the minimum active duty requirement as defined by Code of Federal 
Regulations, title 38, section 3.12a, or who has active military service certified under section 401, Public 
Law 95-202. The active military service must be certified by the United States secretary of defense as active 

120-10 
 

248

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=197.48
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=43a.11
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=197.455


 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

military service and a discharge under honorable conditions must be issued by the secretary." Therefore, 
to be eligible for any Veteran program with the State of Minnesota, you must meet the definition contained 
in this statute. 
 
The City has the right to make the final hiring decision based on qualifications, abilities, experience and 
City of Hanover needs. 
 
Subd. 6.  Background Checks.  All finalists for employment with the City will be subject to a background 
check to confirm information submitted as part of application materials and to assist in determining the 
candidate’s suitability for the position.  Except where already defined by state law, the City Administrator 
will determine the level of background check to be conducted based on the position being filled. 
 
Subd. 7.  Training Period.  The training period is an integral part of the selection process and will be used 
for the purpose of observing the employee’s work and for training the employee in work expectations.  
Training periods are six months in duration. 
 
 
120.08 ORGANIZATION 
 
Subd. 1.  Job Descriptions.  The City will maintain job descriptions for each regular position.  Job 
descriptions for new positions will be developed as needed, but must be approved by the City Council prior 
to the position being filled. 
 
A job description is prepared for each position within the City.  Each job description will include: position 
title, department, supervisor’s title, The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) status (exempt or nonexempt), 
primary objective of the position, essential functions of the position, examples of performance criteria, 
minimum requirements, desirable training and experience, supervisory responsibilities (if any), and extent 
of supervisory direction or guidance provided to position.  Good attendance and compliance with work rules 
and policies are essential functions of all City positions. 
 
Prior to posting a vacant position, the existing job description is reviewed by the City Administrator or 
designee to ensure that the job description is an accurate reflection of the position and that the stated job 
qualifications do not present artificial barriers to employment. 

 
A current job description is provided to each new employee.  The City Administrator or designee is 
responsible for revising job descriptions as necessary to ensure that the position’s duties and 
responsibilities are accurately reflected.  All revisions are reviewed and must be approved by the City 
Administrator. 

 
Subd. 2.  Assigning and Scheduling Work.  Assignment of work duties and scheduling work is the 
responsibility of the City Administrator. 
 
Subd. 3.  Job Descriptions and Classifications.  Assignment of job titles, establishment of minimum 
qualifications, and the maintenance of job descriptions and related records is the responsibility of the City 
Administrator. 
 
Subd. 4.   Layoff.   The City Administrator will maintain a seniority list.  In the event it becomes necessary 
to reduce personnel, temporary employees and those serving a probationary period in affected job 
classes will be terminated from employment with the City before other employees in those job classes.  
Within these groups, the selection of employees to be retained will be based on merit and ability as 
determined by the City Administrator, subject to approval of the City Council.  When all other 
considerations are equal, the principle of seniority will apply in layoffs and recall from layoff.   
 
 
 
 

120-11 
 

249



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

120.09 HOURS OF WORK 
 
Subd. 1.  Work Hours.  Work schedules for employees will be established by supervisors with the approval 
of the City Administrator.  Work schedules will be assigned in accordance with the business needs of the 
City, including ensuring coverage during regular business hours.   
 
Subd. 2.  Meal Breaks and Rest Periods.  A fifteen (15) minute paid break is allowed within each four (4) 
consecutive hours of work.  An unpaid thirty (30) minute lunch period is provided when an employee works 
eight (8) or more consecutive hours.  Employees are expected to use these breaks as intended and will not 
be permitted to adjust work start time, end time or lunch time by saving these breaks. 
 
Non-exempt employees (eligible for overtime pay) are not authorized to take work home or work through 
lunch without prior approval from their supervisor. 

 
Subd. 3.  Adverse Weather Conditions.  City facilities will generally be open during adverse weather.  Due 
to individual circumstances, each employee will have to evaluate the weather and road conditions in 
deciding to report to work (or leave early).  Employees not reporting to work for reasons of personal safety 
will not normally have their pay reduced as a result of this absence.  Employees will be allowed to use 
accrued vacation time or compensatory time; or with supervisor approval may modify the work schedule or 
make other reasonable schedule adjustments. 
 
Public Works and Maintenance employees will generally be required to report to work regardless of 
conditions. 
 
Decisions to cancel departmental programs (special events, recreation programs, etc) will be made by the 
City Administrator. 
 
 
120.10 COMPENSATION 
 
Subd. 1.  Policy.  Full-time employees of the City will be compensated according to the schedule adopted 
by the City Council.  Unless approved by the Council, employees will not receive any amount from the City 
in addition to the pay authorized for the positions to which they have been appointed.  Expense 
reimbursement or travel expenses may be authorized in addition to regular pay 
 
Compensation for seasonal and temporary employees will be set by the City Council at the time of hire, or 
on an annual basis. 
 
Subd. 2.  Compensation Program 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the City Administrator to develop and maintain a compensation plan in 
accordance with state and federal laws for all applicable positions within the City, subject to review and 
approval by the City Council. 
 
The objectives of the City’s compensation plan are as follows: 

• To establish and maintain pay opportunities that enable the City of Hanover to attract and 
retain qualified, reliable and motivated people who are committed to quality and excellence 
for those we serve. 

• To ensure subject to the financial condition of the organization, that employees receive fair 
and equitable salaries in relation to their individual contributions to organization success. 

• To follow the principles of equal pay for equal work and comparable worth in establishing 
and maintaining pay relationships among positions based on skill, effort, responsibility and 
working conditions. 

• To ensure program flexibility necessary to meet changing economic, competitive, 
technological and regulatory conditions. 

120-12 
 

250



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

• To establish, manage and communicate the compensation and performance management 
program in a manner that strengthens internal relationships among related and unrelated 
functions and emphasizes the service expectations of our community. 

• To balance compensation and benefit needs with available resources. 
 
The Compensation Plan provides that employees will be assigned an appropriate pay range which 
corresponds to their job classification.  Pay ranges carry minimum and maximum rates of pay.  An employee 
shall not be paid less than the minimum rate nor more than the maximum rate for their assigned job 
classification, except in certain circumstances as may be referenced in this policy. 
 
There are two components to the compensation system:  bi-annual adjustment of salary ranges and merit 
increase.  
  
Bi-Annual Adjustment of Salary Ranges:  Salary ranges for each position shall be reviewed every two 
years prior to setting the budget for the coming year.  Cities of similar size and tax base within the state of 
Minnesota shall be considered for purposes of this review.  The City Council may adopt changes to the 
salary ranges, or choose not to make changes in any particular review cycle.  If the City Council adopts a 
new range that results in an existing employee being outside of the new range, the City Council shall pass 
a motion expressing their intent for that employee. 
 
Merit Increase:  Increases will be determined, based on the results of a performance evaluation, at an 
employee’s first six month anniversary.  After the initial six month anniversary, performance evaluations 
shall occur annually on or around December 1 of each year with any salary increases effective January 1.  
If the period between the six month anniversary and December 1 is less than 6 months, any salary increase 
will be pro-rated accordingly. 
 
Increase levels will be directly correlated to the final score on the employee’s performance evaluation.  The 
total of the numeric scores received for each category shall be divided by the number of categories.  The 
resulting scores shall be used to determine the increase level. 
 
Increase levels will correlate to final scores as described below.  All increases will be calculated on base 
wages.  Employees with scores that correlate to an increase, but, who are at the maximum of their pay 
range are only eligible for an increase if Council approves an adjustment to the salary range for that position.  
Increases will be awarded on January 1 following an employee’s annual review. 
 

A final score between… Merit Increase of… 
0-2.00 0% 
2.00-2.25 1.0% 
2.26-2.50 2.00% 
2.51-2.75 3.00% 
2.75-3.00 3.50% 
3.01-3.25 4.00% 
3.26-3.50 4.50% 
3.51-4.0 5.00% 

 
 
Merit Increases shall range from 0 – 5% based on a scale corresponding with the performance evaluation. 
 
The City Administrator will provide a summary of each employee’s performance evaluation and the 
recommended merit increase to the City Council before approval.  The City, as fiscally possible, will budget 
an annual amount for merit increases.  The increase levels available will be based on this annual budget 
amount.  There is no obligation on the part of the City to award merit increases even though an amount is 
budgeted.  Because this program is designed to reward specific behaviors and performance levels, the City 
is obliged only to approve increases which, in their professional judgment, are truly merited and meet the 
program purpose and guidelines. 

120-13 
 

251



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
 
 
Subd. 3.  Paychecks.  Paychecks are issued every two weeks.  Distribution of paychecks to City employees 
is to be accomplished in a timely manner using accurate, consistent procedures.  If the regular payday falls 
on a holiday, payday will normally be the last regular workday before the holiday 
 
Paychecks will not be given to anyone other than the person for whom they were prepared, unless the 
person has a note signed by the employee authorizing the City to give the other person the check.  Checks 
will be given to the spouse, or another appropriate immediate family member, in the case of a deceased 
employee. 
 
Employees are responsible for notifying the City Administrator of any change in status including changes 
in address, phone number, names of beneficiaries, marital status, etc. 

 
Subd. 4.  Time Reporting.  Full-time, non-exempt employees are expected to work forty (40) hours per 
workweek and will be paid according to the time reported on their timesheets.  To comply with the provisions 
of the federal and state Fair Labor Standards Acts, hours worked and any leave time used by non-exempt 
employees are to be recorded daily and submitted to payroll on a biweekly basis.  Each time reporting form 
must include the signature of the employee and immediate supervisor.  Reporting false information on a 
time sheet may be cause for immediate termination. 

 
Subd. 5.  Overtime/Compensatory Time.  Because of the nature of work, employees may be directed to 
work overtime on weekends or additional hours during the regular workday.  Employees are expected to 
comply with such directives. The City of Hanover has established this overtime policy to comply with 
applicable state and federal laws governing accrual and use of overtime.  The City Administrator will 
determine whether each employee is designated as “exempt” or “non-exempt” from earning overtime.  In 
general, employees in executive, administrative and professional job classes are exempt; all others are 
non-exempt. 

 
A. Non-Exempt (Overtime-eligible) Employees: 

 
All overtime-eligible employees will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1.5) 
for all hours worked over forty (40) in one (1) workweek.  Vacation and sick leave do not 
count toward “hours worked”.  Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked.  Time taken 
for lunch or dinner is not included as time worked for purposes of compensation and 
computing overtime.  Compensation will take the form of either time and one-half pay or 
compensatory time.  Compensatory time is paid time off at the rate of one and one-half 
(1.5) hours off for each hour of overtime worked.   
 
The maximum compensatory time accumulation for any employee is 200 hours total.  
Once an employee has earned 200 hours of compensatory time in total, no further 
compensatory time may accrue.  All further overtime will be paid.  Employees may 
request and use compensatory time off in the same manner as other leave requests.   
 
The employee’s supervisor must approve overtime hours in advance.  An employee who 
works overtime without prior approval may be subject to disciplinary action 
 
Overtime earned will be paid at the rate of time and one-half on the next regularly 
scheduled payroll date, unless the employee indicates on his/her timesheet that the 
overtime earned is to be recorded as compensatory time in lieu of payment. 

    
All compensatory time will be marked as such on official timesheets, both when it is earned 
and when it is used.  The City Administrator will maintain compensatory time records.  All 
compensatory time accrued will be paid when the employee leaves city employment at the 
hourly pay rate the employee is earning at that time 

120-14 
 

252



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
B. Exempt (non-overtime-eligible) Employees: 
 

Exempt employees are expected to work the hours necessary to meet the performance 
expectations outlined by their supervisors.  Generally, to meet these expectations, and for 
reasons of public accountancy, an exempt employee will need to work forty (40) or more 
hours per week.  Exempt employees do not receive extra pay for the hours worked over 
forty (40) in one (1) workweek. 
 
Exempt employees are paid on a salary basis.  This means that they receive a 
predetermined amount of pay each pay period and are not paid by the hour.  Their pay 
does not vary based on the quality or quantity of work performed, and they receive their 
full weekly salary for any week in which any work is performed. 
 
The City of Hanover will only make deductions from the weekly salary of an exempt 
employee in the following situations: 

• The employee is in a position that does not earn vacation or personal leave 
and is absent for a day or more for personal reasons other than sickness or 
accident; 

 
• The employee is in a position that earns sick leave, receives a short term 

disability benefit or workers’ compensation wage loss benefits and is absent 
for a full day due to sickness or disability, but he/she is either not yet qualified 
to use the paid leave or he/she has exhausted all of his/her paid leave. 

 
• The employee is absent for a full workweek and, for whatever reason, the 

absence is not charged to paid leave (for example, a situation where the 
employee has exhausted all of his/her paid leave or a situation where the 
employee does not earn paid leave). 

 
• The very first workweek or the very last workweek of employment with the City 

in which the employee does not work a full week.  In this case, the City will 
prorate the employee’s salary based on the time actually worked. 

 
• The employee is in a position that earns paid leave and is absent for a partial 

day due to personal reasons, illness or injury, but: 
 

o Paid leave has not been requested or has been denied; 
 

o Paid leave is exhausted; 
 

o The employee has specifically requested unpaid leave; 
 

• The employee is suspended without pay for a full day or more for disciplinary 
reasons for violations of any written policy that is applied to all employees. 

 
• The employee takes unpaid leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act 

(FMLA). 
 
• The City of Hanover may for budgetary reasons implement a voluntary or 

involuntary unpaid leave program and, under this program, make deductions 
from the weekly salary of an exempt employee.  In this case, the employee will 
be treated as non-exempt for any workweek in which the budget-related 
deductions are made. 

 

120-15 
 

253



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

The City of Hanover will not make deductions from pay due to exempt employees being 
absent for jury duty or attendance as a witness in any matter relating to their employment 
with the City, but not as a witness against the City, but will require the employee to pay 
back to the City any amounts received by the employee as jury fees or witness fees. 
 

  All exempt positions, whether or not management, may require work beyond forty (40)  
  hours per week.  In recognition for working extra hours, these employees may take some  
  time off  during their normal working hours with supervisory approval.  The time off for  
  extra hours will not be on a one-for-one basis. 

 
If the City inadvertently makes an improper deduction to the weekly salary of an exempt 
employee, the City will reimburse the employee and make appropriate changes to comply 
in the future. 
 

  C.  All Employees 
 
   All employees in all departments, are required to work overtime or hours outside of or in  
   addition to their normally scheduled hours as requested by their supervisors as a condition 
   of continued employment.  Refusal to work such hours may result in disciplinary action.   
   Supervisors will make reasonable efforts to balance the personal needs of their employees 
   when making such assignments. 
 
 
120.11 PERFORMANCE REVIEWS 
 
Subd. 1.  Process.  A performance review system will be established by the City Administrator or designee 
for the purpose of periodically evaluating the performance of City employees.  The quality of an employee’s 
past performance will be considered in personnel decisions such as promotions, transfers, demotions, 
terminations and, where applicable, salary adjustments.  The City Administrator shall solicit the opinions of 
the City Council as part of the overall review process, and shall take into account progress towards the City 
Council’s goals, progress towards team goals, and the individual job responsibilities of each employee as 
part of the overall review.  Employees are expected to participate in the review process, including providing 
feedback as part of a discussion of results and future goals. 
 
Performance reviews will be discussed with the employee.  Employees do not have the right to change or 
grieve their performance review, but may submit a written response which will be attached to the 
performance review. 

 
Performance reviews are to be scheduled on a regular basis, at least annually.  The form, with all required 
signatures, will be retained as part of the employee’s personnel file. 

 
During the training period, informal performance meetings should occur frequently between the supervisor 
and the employee. 

 
Signing of the performance review document by the employee acknowledges that the review has been 
discussed with the supervisor and does not necessarily constitute agreement.  Failure to sign the document 
by the employee will not delay processing or completion of the evaluation. 
 
 
120.12 BENEFITS 
 
Subd. 1.  Health and Dental Insurance, Full Time exempt and nonexempt employees shall qualify for up to 
$700.00 per month employer-paid contribution to single member health and dental insurance coverage OR 
up to $900.00 per month for family coverage on the first day of employment.  Part Time Employees who 
work 30 hours or more per week shall qualify for up to $700.00 per month employer-paid single coverage 
health and dental insurance OR up to $900.00 per month employer-paid family coverage at the end of their 

120-16 
 

254



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

probationary period.  Part Time Employees who work more than 25 hours but less than 30 hours per week 
shall qualify for pro-rata benefits based upon a 40 hour work week.  Premiums above the allotment provided 
are the sole responsibility of the employee. 
 
The City’s only obligation is to purchase a health and dental insurance policy and pay the amounts stated 
above toward the premium.  No claim shall be made against the City as a result of a denial of insurance 
benefits by an insurance carrier. 
 
Any portion that remains of the $700.00 OR $900.00 per month after the payment of health and dental 
premiums may be used by the employee for the purchase of other supplemental insurance or contributed 
to a Health Savings Account (HAS) subject to federal limits.  Any supplemental insurance premiums not 
covered by the employee’s allotted premium amount is the sole responsibility of the employee.   
 
For information about coverage and eligibility requirements, employees should refer to the summary plan 
description or contact the City Administrator. 

 
Subd. 2.  Retirement.  The City participates in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERA) to provide 
pension benefits for its eligible employees.  The City and the employee contribute to PERA each pay period 
as determined by state law.   

 
For information about PERA eligibility and contribution requirements contact the City Administrator. 
 
Subd. 3.  Other Benefits.  Full-time employees and part-time employees who work thirty (30) or more hours 
per week are eligible for employer-paid short-term disability insurance, long-term disability insurance , and 
life insurance benefits. 
 
For information about eligibility and contribution requirements contact the City Administrator. 
 
Subd. 4.  Minnesota State Deferred Compensation Plan.  Any full-time or part-time employee may elect to 
participate in this plan.  They may make tax deferred contributions, as defined in the Plan, from their income. 
 
 
120.13 HOLIDAYS 
 
The City observes the following official holidays for all regular full-time and part-time employees: 
 

• New Year’s Day 

• Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

• President’s Day 

• Memorial Day 

• Independence Day 

• Labor Day 

• Veteran’s Day 

• Thanksgiving Day 

• The Friday after Thanksgiving Day (in lieu of Columbus Day) 

• Christmas Day 
 
City Hall may be closed at noon on Christmas Eve, but Christmas Eve is not a paid holiday. 
 
Official holidays commence at the beginning of the first shift of the day on which the holiday is observed 
and continue for twenty-four (24) hours thereafter. 

120-17 
 

255



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Official holidays, as listed above, will paid in accordance with the employee’s assigned work hours. 

When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be the “observed” holiday for City 
operations/facilities that are closed on holidays.  When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday 
will be the “observed” holiday. 

Full-time employees will receive pay for official holidays at their normal straight time rates, provided they 
are on paid status on the last scheduled day prior to the holiday and first scheduled day immediately after 
the holiday.  Part-time employees will receive pro-rated holiday pay based on the number of hours 
normally scheduled.  Any employee on a leave of absence without pay from the City is not eligible for 
holiday pay.   
 
Employees will be paid for the holiday if they: 
 

• Have worked the full day before and the full day after the holiday, unless time off has been approved 
in advance; and 
 

• Had been scheduled to work the day on which the holiday falls or is “observed.” 
 
Due to business needs, some employees may be required to work on City holidays.  An employee’s 
supervisor or manager will notify the employee if he/she is required to work. 
 
Employees who are required to work on a holiday will receive holiday pay in addition to pay for hours 
worked.  Holiday hours count toward hours worked for overtime pay calculations. 
 
Employees wanting to observe holidays other than those officially observed by the City may request either 
vacation leave or unpaid leave for such time off. 
 
 
120.14 LEAVES 
 
Subd. 1.  Overview.  Depending upon an employee’s situation, more than one form of leave may apply 
during the same period of time (e.g., The Family and Medical Leave Act is likely to apply during a worker’s 
compensation absence.).  An employee will need to meet the requirements of each form of leave 
separately.  Leave requests will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Except as otherwise stated, all paid time off, taken under any of the City’s leave programs, must be taken 
consecutively, with no intervening unpaid leave.  The City will provide employees with time away from work 
as required by state or federal statutes, if there are requirements for such time off that are not described in 
the personnel policies. 
 
Subd. 2.  Sick Leave.  Sick leave is an authorized absence from work with pay, granted to qualified full-time 
and part-time employees.  Sick leave is a privilege, not a right.  Employees are to use this paid leave only 
when they are unable to work for medical reasons and under the conditions explained below.  Sick leave 
does not accrue during an unpaid leave of absence. 

• Full-time employees will accumulate sick leave at a rate of one (1) day per month. 
 
• Part-time employees regularly scheduled to work at least twenty (20) hours per week will 

accrue sick leave on a pro-rated basis of the full time employee schedule. 
 

• Part-time employees regularly scheduled to work fewer than twenty (20) hours per week will 
not earn or accrue sick leave. 

 
• Temporary and seasonal employees will not earn or accrue sick leave. 
 

120-18 
 

256



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

• Sick leave may be used only for days when the employee would otherwise have been at work.  
It cannot be used for scheduled days off. 

 
Sick leave may be used as follows: 

• When an employee is unable to perform work duties due a medical condition such as an illness, 
disability or pregnancy, but not limited to only the mentioned conditions. 

 
• For medical, dental or other care provider appointments. 

 
• When an employee has been exposed to a contagious disease of such a nature that his/her 

presence at the work place could endanger the health of others. 
 

• To care for the employee’s injured or ill children, including stepchildren or foster children, for 
such reasonable periods as the employee’s attendance with the child may be necessary. 

 
• To take children, or other family members (defined as a spouse, father, mother, sister or 

brother) to a medical, dental or other care provider appointment. 
 

• To take care of an ill spouse, father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, stepparent, 
grandparent, grandchild, sister or brother.  

 
• Employees are authorized to use sick leave for reasonable absences for themselves or 

relatives (employee's adult child, spouse, sibling, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, 
grandchild, grandparent, or stepparent) who are providing or receiving assistance because 
they, or a relative, is a victim of sexual assault, domestic abuse, or stalking.  Safety leave for 
those listed, other than the employee and the employee’s child, is limited to 160 hours in any 
12-month period. 

 
• Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §181.9413, eligible employees may use up to 160 hours of sick leave 

in any 12-month period for absences due to an illness of or injury to the employee's adult child, 
spouse, sibling, parent, grandparent, stepparent, parent-in-laws (mother-in-laws and father-in-
laws) and grandchildren (includes step-grandchildren, biological, adopted or foster 
grandchildren).  

 
 

After accrued sick leave has been exhausted, vacation leave may be used upon approval of the City 
Administrator, to the extent the employee is entitled to such leave. 

 
To be eligible for sick leave pay, the employee must: 

• Communicate with his/her immediate supervisor, as soon as possible after the scheduled start 
of the work day, for each and every day absent; 

 
• Keep his/her immediate supervisor informed of the status of the illness/injury, or the condition 

of the ill family member; and 
 

• Submit a physician’s statement upon request. 
 

After an absence, a physician’s statement may be required on the employee’s first day back to work, 
indicating the nature of the illness or medical condition and attesting to the employee’s ability to return to 
work and safely perform the essential functions of the job with or without reasonable accommodation. 

 
Any work restrictions must be stated clearly on the return-to-work form.  Employees who have been asked 
to provide such a statement may not be allowed to return to work until they comply with this provision.  Sick 
leave may be denied for any employee required to provide a doctor’s statement until such a statement is 

120-19 
 

257



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

provided. 
 
The City has the right to obtain a second medical opinion to determine the validity of an employee’s worker’s 
compensation or sick leave claim, or to obtain information related to restrictions or an employee’s ability to 
work.  The City will arrange and pay for an appropriate medical evaluation when it is required by the City. 
 
Any employee who makes a false claim for sick leave will be subject to discipline up to and including 
termination 
 
Employees must normally use sick leave prior to using paid vacation, or compensatory time and prior to an 
unpaid leave of absence during a medical leave, except where Parenting Leave under Minnesota law and 
the medical leave overlap. 
 
Sick leave will normally not be approved after an employee gives notice that he or she will be terminating 
employment.  Exceptions must be approved by the City Administrator. 
 
Sick leave cannot be transferred from one employee to another.  The maximum accumulation for sick leave 
is two hundred forty (240) hours.  No hours will be accrued exceeding 240 hours. Any unused sick leave 
shall be paid upon termination. 
 
 
Subd. 3.  Vacation Leave. 
 
Vacation Leave Schedule 
 
 Years of Service Annual Accrual 
 0-4 Years  80 hours 
 5-9 Years  120 hours 
 10+ Years  160 hours 
 
Eligibility 
Full-time employees will earn vacation leave in accordance with the above schedule. 
 
Part-time employees who work at least twenty (20) hours per week on a regular basis will accrue vacation 
leave on a prorated basis of the full-time employee schedule. 
 
Part-time employees who work fewer than twenty (20) hours per week on a regular basis, temporary and 
seasonal employees will not earn or accrue vacation leave. 
 
Accrual Rate 
For the purpose of determining an employee’s vacation accrual rate, years of service will include all 
continuous time that the employee has worked at the City (including authorized unpaid leave).  Employees 
who are rehired after terminating City employment will not receive credit for their prior service unless 
specifically negotiated at the time of hire. 
 
Earnings and Use 
Vacation shall be credited to an employee on the first day of employment and on each anniversary date 
thereafter.  Vacation use is subject to approval by the employee’s supervisor. 
 
Requests for vacation in increments of four (4) days or less must be received at least forty-eight (48) hours 
in advance of the requested time off.  If requesting five or more days consecutively, the request must be 
made at least ten (10) days in advance.  This notice may be waived at the discretion of the City Administrator 
or designee.  Vacation can be requested in increments as small as one hour up to the total amount of the 
accrued leave balance.  Vacation leave is to be used only by the employee who accumulated it.  It cannot 
be transferred to another employee. 
 

120-20 
 

258



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Employees may accrue vacation leave up to a maximum of two hundred (200) hours.  No vacation will be 
allowed to accrue in excess of this amount without the approval of the City Council.  Vacation leave cannot 
be converted into cash payments except at termination. 
 
Subd. 4.  Funeral Leave.  Employees will be permitted to use up to three (3) consecutive working days, 
with pay, as funeral leave upon the death of an immediate family member.  This paid leave will not be 
deducted from the employee’s vacation or sick leave balance.  Immediate family is defined as the 
employee’s spouse, parents, step-parents, children, step-children, siblings, grandparents, grandchildren, 
or great-grandchildren; the spouse’s parents, step-parents, siblings or grandparents; son-in-law, daughter-
in-law or ward of the employee’s household. 
 
One (1) funeral leave day will be allowed for death of aunts, uncles, nephews, and nieces. 
 
The actual amount of time off, and funeral leave approved, will be determined by the supervisor or City 
Administrator depending on individual circumstances (such as the closeness of the relative, 
arrangements to be made, distance to the funeral, etc.).  
 
 
Subd. 5.  Military Leave.  State and federal laws provide protections and benefits to City employees who 
are called to military service, whether in the reserves or on active duty.  Such employees are entitled to a 
leave of absence without loss of pay, seniority status, efficiency rating, or benefits for the time the employee 
is engaged in training or active service not exceeding a total of fifteen (15) days in any calendar year. 
 
The leave of absence is only in the event the employee returns to employment with the City as required 
upon being relieved from service, or is prevented from returning by physical or mental disability or other 
cause not the fault of the employee, or is required by the proper authority to continue in military or naval 
service beyond the fifteen (15) day paid leave of absence.  Employees on extended unpaid military leave 
will receive fifteen (15) days paid leave of absence in each calendar year, not to exceed five (5) years. 
 
Where possible, notice is to be provided to the City at least ten (10) working days in advance of the 
requested leave.  If an employee has not yet used his/her fifteen (15) days of paid leave when called to 
active duty, any unused paid time will be allowed for the active duty time, prior to the unpaid leave of 
absence. 
 
Employees returning from military service will be reemployed in the job that they would have attained had 
they not been absent for military service and with the same seniority, status and pay, as well as other rights 
and benefits determined by seniority.  Unpaid military leave will be considered hours worked for the purpose 
of vacation leave and sick leave accruals. 
 
Eligibility for continuation of insurance coverage for employees on military leave beyond fifteen (15) days 
will follow the same procedures as for any employee on an unpaid leave of absence. 
 
Subd. 6.  Jury Duty.  Regular full-time and part-time employees will be granted paid leaves of absence for 
required jury duty.  Such employees will be required to turn over any compensation they receive for jury 
duty, minus mileage reimbursement, to the City in order to receive their regular wages for the period.  Time 
spent on jury duty will not be counted as time worked in computing overtime. 
 
Employees excused or released from jury duty during their regular working hours will report to their regular 
work duties as soon as reasonably possible or will take accrued vacation or compensatory time to make up 
the difference. 
 
Employees are required to notify their supervisor as soon as possible after receiving notice to report for jury 
duty.  The employee will be responsible for ensuring that a report of time spent on jury duty and pay form 
is completed by the Clerk of Court so the City will be able to determine the amount of compensation due 
for the period involved. 
 

120-21 
 

259



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Temporary and seasonal employees are generally not eligible for compensation for absences due to jury 
duty, but can take a leave without pay subject to approval by the City Administrator or designee.  However, 
if a temporary or seasonal employee is classified as exempt, he/she will receive compensation for the jury 
duty time. 
 
Subd. 7.  Court Appearances.  Employees will be paid their regular wage to testify in court for City-related 
business, so long as the employee is not testifying against the City or is a plaintiff in the matter pending 
before the court.  Any compensation received for court appearances (e.g. subpoena fees) arising out of or 
in connection with City employment, minus mileage reimbursement, must be turned over to the City. 
 
Subd. 8.  Job Related Injury or Illness.  All employees are required to report any job-related illnesses or 
injuries to their supervisor immediately (no matter how minor).  If a supervisor is not available and the nature 
of injury or illness requires immediate treatment, the employee is to go to the nearest available medical 
facility for treatment and, as soon as possible, notify his/her supervisor of the action taken.  In the case of 
a serious emergency, 911 should be called. 
 
If the injury is not of an emergency nature, but requires medical attention, the employee will report it to the 
supervisor and make arrangements for a medical appointment. 
 
Worker’s compensation benefits and procedures to return to work will be applied according to applicable 
state and federal laws. 
 
Subd. 9.  Parenting Leave.  Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week and have been 
employed more than one year are entitled to take an unpaid leave of absence in connection with the birth 
or adoption of a child.  The leave may not exceed six weeks, and must begin within six (6) weeks after the 
birth or adoption of the child. 
 
Employees are not required to use sick leave during Parenting Leave but may use sick leave at their option 
for any period of this leave for which they are unable to work due to medical reasons. 
 
The employee is entitled to return to work in the same position and at the same rate of pay the employee 
was receiving prior to commencement of the leave.  Group insurance coverage will remain in effect during 
the six (6) week Parenting Leave. 
 
Employees who work twenty (20) hours or more per week and have been employed more than one year 
are entitled to take an unpaid leave of absence under the Pregnancy and Parenting Leave Act of 
Minnesota.  Female employees for prenatal care, or incapacity due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related 
health conditions as well as a biological or adoptive parent in conjunction with after the birth or adoption 
of a child as eligible for up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave and must begin within twelve (12) months of the 
birth or adoption of the child.  In the case where the child must remain in the hospital longer than the 
mother, the leave must begin within 12 months after the child leaves the hospital. Employee should 
provide reasonable notice, which is at least 10 days.  If the leave must be taken in less than three days, 
the employee should give as much notice as practicable.  
 
Subd. 10.  Administrative Leave.  Under special circumstances, an employee may be placed on an 
administrative leave pending the outcome of an internal or external investigation.  The leave may be paid 
or unpaid, depending on the circumstances, as determined by the City Administrator with the approval of 
the City Council. 
 
Subd. 11.  Adoptive Parents.  Adoptive parents will be given the same opportunities for leave as biological 
parents (see provisions for Parenting Leave, as set forth in Subd. 9).  The leave must be for the purpose of 
arranging the child’s placement or caring for the child after placement.  Such leave must begin before or at 
the time of the child’s placement in the adoptive home. 
 
Subd.  12.   School Conference Leave.  Any employee who has worked half-time or more for more may 
take unpaid leave for up to a total of sixteen (16) hours during any 12-month period to attend school 

120-22 
 

260



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

conferences or classroom activities related to the employee's child (under 18 or under 20 and still 
attending secondary school), provided the conference or classroom activities cannot be scheduled during 
non-work hours. When the leave cannot be scheduled during non-work hours and the need for the leave 
is foreseeable, the employee must provide reasonable prior notice of the leave and make a reasonable 
effort to schedule the leave so as not to disrupt unduly the operations of the city. Employees may choose 
to use vacation leave hours for this absence, but are not required to do so. 
 
Subd. 13.  Bone Marrow Donation Leave.  Employees working an average of 20 or more hours per week 
may take paid leave, not to exceed 40 hours unless agreed to by the City, to undergo medical procedures 
to donate bone marrow.  The City may require a physician’s verification of the purpose and length of the 
leave requested to donate bone marrow.  If there is a medical determination that the employee does not 
qualify as a bone marrow donor, the paid leave of absence granted to the employee prior to that medical 
determination is not forfeited. 
 
Subd. 14.  Victim or Witness Leave.  An employer must allow a victim or witness, who is subpoenaed or 
requested by the prosecutor to attend court for the purpose of giving testimony, or is the spouse or 
immediate family member (immediate family member includes parent, spouse, child or sibling of the 
employee) of such victim, reasonable time off from work to attend criminal proceedings related to the 
victim's case.   
 
Subd. 15.  Leave for Families of Mobilized Military Members.  An employee whose immediate family 
member, as a member of the United States armed forces, has been injured or killed while engaged in active 
service, will be allowed up to ten (10) working days of a leave of absence without pay.  Unless the leave 
would unduly disrupt the operations of the employer, a leave of absence without pay will be granted to an 
employee whose immediate family member, as a member of the United States armed forces, has been 
ordered into active service in support of a war or other national emergency.  The employer may limit the 
amount of leave provided under this subdivision to the actual time necessary for the employee to attend a 
send-of or homecoming ceremony for the mobilized service member, not to exceed one day’s duration in 
any calendar year. 
 
Subd. 16.  Elections/Voting.  An employee selected to serve as an election judge pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes section 204B.195, will be allowed time off without pay for purposes of serving as an election judge, 
provided that the employee gives the City at least twenty (20) days written notice. 
 
Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes section 204C.04, all employees eligible to vote at a State general election, 
at an election to fill a vacancy in the office of United States Senator or Representative, or in a Presidential 
primary, will be allowed time off with pay to vote during the morning of election day.  Employees wanting to 
take advantage of such leave are required to work with their supervisors to avoid coverage issues. 
 
Subd. 17.  Regular Leave without Pay.  The City Administrator may authorize leave without pay for up to 
thirty (30) days.  Leave without pay for greater periods may be granted by the City Council. 
 
Normally employee benefits will not be earned by an employee while on leave without pay.  However, the 
City’s contribution toward health and dental insurance may be continued, if approved by the City Council, 
for leaves of up to ninety (90) days when the leave is for medical reasons. 
 
If an employee is on a regular leave without pay and is not working any hours, the employee will not accrue 
(or be paid for) holidays, sick leave, or vacation leave.  Employees who are working reduced hours while 
on this type of leave will receive holiday pay on a prorated basis and will accrue sick leave and vacation 
leave based on actual hours worked. 
 
Leave without pay hours will not count toward seniority and all accrued vacation leave and compensatory 
time must normally be used before an unpaid leave of absence will be approved. 
 
To qualify for leave without pay, an employee need not have used all sick leave earned unless the leave is 
for medical reasons.  (An employee absent for Parenting Leave is not required to use sick leave.) Leave 

120-23 
 

261



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

without pay for purposes other than medical leave or work-related injuries will be at the convenience of the 
City. 
 
Employees returning from a leave without pay for a reason other than a qualified Parenting Leave, will be 
guaranteed return to the original position only for absences of thirty (30) calendar days or less. 
 
Employees receiving leave without pay in excess of thirty (30) calendar days, for reasons other than 
qualified Parenting Leave, are not guaranteed return to their original position.  If their original position or a 
position of similar or lesser status is available, it may be offered at the discretion of the City Administrator 
subject to approval of the City Council. 
 
Nursing mothers will be provided reasonable unpaid break time for nursing mothers to express milk for 
nursing her child for one year after the child’s birth. The city will provide a room (other than a bathroom) 
as close as possible to the employee’s work area, that is shielded from view and free from intrusion from 
coworkers and the public and includes access to an electrical outlet, where the nursing mother can 
express milk in private. 
 
 
120.15 SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION 
 
Subd. 1.  General.  The City of Hanover is committed to creating and maintaining a work place free of 
harassment and discrimination.  Such harassment is a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
and the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 
 
In keeping with this commitment, the City maintains a strict policy prohibiting unlawful harassment, including 
sexual harassment.  This policy prohibits harassment in any form, including verbal and physical 
harassment. 
 
This policy statement is intended to make all employees sensitive to the matter of sexual harassment, to 
express the City’s strong disapproval of unlawful sexual harassment, to advise employees against this 
behavior and to inform them of their rights and obligations.  The most effective way to address any sexual 
harassment issue is to bring it to the attention of management. 
 
Subd. 2.  Definitions.  To provide employees with a better understanding of what constitutes sexual 
harassment, the definition, based on Minnesota Statute § 363A.03, subdivision 43, is provided: sexual 
harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually motivated physical 
contact, or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature, when: 

• Submitting to the conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an 
individual’s employment; or 

 
• Submitting to or rejecting the conduct is used as the basis for an employment decision 

affecting an individual’s employment; or 
 

• Such conduct has the purpose or result of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s 
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 

 
Examples of inappropriate conduct include but are not limited to: unwanted physical contact; unwelcome 
sexual jokes or comments; sexually explicit posters or pinups; repeated and unwelcome requests for dates 
or sexual favors; sexual gestures or any indication, expressed or implied, that job security or any other 
condition of employment depends on submission to or rejection of unwelcome sexual requests or behavior.  
In summary, sexual harassment is the unwanted, unwelcome and repeated action of an individual against 
another individual, using sexual overtones as a means of creating stress. 
 
Subd.  3.  Expectations.  The City of Hanover recognizes the need to educate its employees on the subject 
of sexual harassment and stands committed to providing information and training.  All employees are 

120-24 
 

262



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

expected to treat each other and the general public with respect and to assist in fostering an environment 
that is free from unwanted harassment.  Violations of this policy may result in discipline, including possible 
termination.  Each situation will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Employees who feel that they have been victims of sexual harassment, or employees who are aware of 
such harassment, should immediately report their concerns to any of the following: 

1. Immediate Supervisor; 
 

2. City Administrator; 
 

3. Mayor or City Council member. 
 
In addition to notifying one of the above persons and stating the nature of the harassment, the employee is 
also encouraged to take the following steps: 

1. Make it clear to the harasser that the conduct is unwelcome and document that 
conversation; 

 
2. Document the occurrences of harassment; 
 
3. Submit the documented complaints to your supervisor, City Administrator, Mayor or any 

member of the City Council.  Employees are strongly encouraged to put the complaint in 
writing. 

 
4. Document any further harassment or reprisals that occur after the initial complaint is made. 

 
The City urges that conduct which is viewed as offensive be reported immediately to allow for corrective 
action to be taken through education and immediate counseling, if appropriate. 
 
The City has the obligation to provide an environment free of sexual harassment.  The City is obligated to 
prevent and correct unlawful harassment in a manner which does not abridge the rights of the accused.  To 
accomplish this task, the cooperation of all employees is required. 
 
The City will take action to correct any and all reported harassment to the extent evidence is available to 
verify the alleged harassment and any related retaliation.  All allegations will be investigated.  Strict 
confidentiality is not possible in all cases of sexual harassment as the accused has the right to answer 
charges made against them; particularly if discipline is a possible outcome.  Reasonable efforts will be 
made to respect the confidentiality of the individuals involved, to the extent possible. 
 
Any employee who makes a false complaint or provides false information during an investigation may be 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 
Subd. 4.  Retaliation.  The City of Hanover will not tolerate retaliation or intimidation directed towards anyone 
who makes a complaint.  Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, any form of intimidation, reprisal or 
harassment.  Any individual who retaliates against a person who testifies, assists, or participates in an 
investigation may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
 
 
120.16 SEPARATION FROM SERVICE 
 
Subd. 1.  Resignations.  As provided in section 100.01 of this policy, an employee may terminate 
employment at any time for any reason.  However, employees wishing to leave the City service in good 
standing must provide a written resignation notice to their supervisor, at least ten (10) working days before 
leaving.  Exempt employees must give thirty (30) calendar day notice.  The written resignation must state 
the effective date of the employee’s resignation. 
 

120-25 
 

263



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Failure to comply with this procedure may be cause for denying the employee’s severance pay and any 
future employment with the City. 
 
Subd. 2.  Severance Pay.  Employees who leave the employ of the City in good standing by retirement or 
resignation will receive pay for one hundred percent (100%) of unused accrued vacation, sick leave, and 
compensatory time.  
 
Subd. 3.  Exit Interview.  The City Council reserves the right to require an exit interview with any employee 
in order for that employee to leave the municipal service in good standing. 
 
 
120.17 DISCIPLINE 
 
Subd. 1.  General Policy.  Supervisors are responsible for maintaining compliance with City standards of 
employee conduct.  The objective of this policy is to establish a standard disciplinary process for employees 
of the City of Hanover.  City employees will be subject to disciplinary action for failure to fulfill their duties 
and responsibilities at the level required, including observance of work rules and standards of conduct and 
applicable city policies. 
 
Discipline will be administered in a non-discriminatory manner.  An employee who believes that discipline 
applied was either unjust or disproportionate to the offense committed may pursue a remedy through the 
grievance procedures established in the City’s personnel policies.  The supervisor and/or the City 
Administrator will investigate any allegation on which disciplinary action might be based before any 
disciplinary action is taken. 
 
Subd. 2.  No Contract Language Established.  As stated in Section 100.01, this policy is not to be construed 
as contractual terms and is intended to serve only as a guide for employment discipline. 
 
Subd. 3.  Process.  The City may elect to use progressive discipline with any employee.  There may be 
circumstances that warrant deviation from the suggested order or where progressive discipline is not 
appropriate.  Nothing in these personnel policies implies that any City employee has a property right to the 
job he/she performs. 
 
Documentation of disciplinary action taken will be placed in the employee’s personnel file with a copy 
provided to the employee. 
 
The following are descriptions of the types of disciplinary actions: 
 

Oral Reprimand 
 
This measure will be used where informal discussions with the employee’s supervisor have not 
resolved the matter.  All supervisors have the ability to issue oral reprimands without prior approval. 
 
 
Oral reprimands are normally given for first infractions on minor offenses to clarify expectations and 
put the employee on notice that the performance or behavior needs to change, and what the change 
must be.  The supervisor will document the oral reprimand including date(s) and a summary of 
discussion and corrective action needed. 
 
Written Reprimand 
 
A written reprimand is more serious and may follow an oral reprimand when the problem is not 
corrected or the behavior has not consistently improved in a reasonable period of time.  Serious 
infractions may require skipping either the oral or written reprimand, or both. 
 
Written reprimands are issued by the supervisor with prior approval from the City Administrator. 

120-26 
 

264



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
A written reprimand will: (1) state what did happen; (2) state what should have happened; (3) 
identify the policy, directive or performance expectation that was not followed; (4) provide history, 
if any, on the issue; (5) state goals, including timetables, and expectations for the future; and (6) 
indicate consequences of recurrence. 
 
Employees will be given a copy of the reprimand to sign acknowledging its receipt.  Employees’ 
signatures do not mean that they agree with the reprimand.  Written reprimands will be placed in 
the employee’s personnel file. 

 
Suspension With or Without Pay 
 
The City Administrator may suspend an employee with or without pay for disciplinary reasons.  
Suspension without pay may be followed with immediate dismissal as deemed appropriate by the 
City Council, except in the case of veterans.  Qualified veterans will not be suspended without pay 
in conjunction with a termination. 
 
The employee will be notified in writing of the reason for the suspension either prior to the 
suspension or shortly thereafter.  A copy of the letter of suspension will be placed in the employee’s 
personnel file. 
 
An employee may be suspended or placed on involuntary leave of absence pending an 
investigation of an allegation involving that employee.  The leave may be with or without pay 
depending on a number of factors including the nature of the allegations.  If the allegation is proven 
false after the investigation, the relevant written documents will be removed from the employee’s 
personnel file and the employee will receive any compensation and benefits due had the 
suspension not taken place. 
 
Demotion and/or Transfer 
An employee may be demoted or transferred if the City Administrator determines a demotion or 
transfer to be the best solution to the problem.  The employee must be qualified for the position to 
which they are being demoted or transferred.  The City Council must approve this action. 
 
Salary 
An employee’s salary increase may be withheld or the salary may be decreased due to 
performance deficiencies. 
 
Dismissal 
The City Administrator, with the approval of the City Council, may dismiss an employee for 
substandard work performance, serious misconduct, violation of policy, or behavior not in keeping 
with City standards. 
 

If the disciplinary action involves the removal of a qualified veteran, the appropriate hearing notice will be 
provided and all rights will be afforded the veteran in accordance with Minnesota law. 
 
120.18 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
Subd. 1.  Process.  Employee grievances over discipline must be submitted in writing to the City 
Administrator.   
If the grievance cannot be resolved at the City Administrator level, the grievant and the City Administrator 
shall present the matter the full City Council for discussion and resolution. 
 
If the City Administrator wishes to grieve his or her own discipline, such a grievance must be submitted in 
writing directly to the City Council. 
 
 

120-27 
 

265



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

Subd. 2.  Exceptions.  The following actions are not subject to grievance: 
 

1. Performance evaluations; 
 
2. Pay increases or lack thereof; and 
 
3. Merit pay awards. 

 
The above list is not meant to be all inclusive or exhaustive. 
 
 
120.19 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION AND TRAINING 
 
Subd. 1.  Goal.  The City promotes staff development as an essential, ongoing function needed to maintain 
and improve cost effective quality service to residents.  The purposes for staff development are to ensure 
that employees develop and maintain the knowledge and skills necessary for effective job performance and 
to provide employees with an opportunity for job enrichment and mobility. 
 
Subd. 2.  Policy.  The City will pay for the costs of an employee’s participation in training and attendance 
at professional conferences, provided that attendance is approved in advance under the following criteria 
and procedures: 
 

• Job-Related Training & Conferences 
The subject matter of the training session or conference is directly job-related and relevant to 
the performance of the employee’s work responsibilities.  Responsibilities outlined in the job 
description, annual work program requirements and training goals and objectives that have 
been developed for the employee will be considered in determining if the request is job-related. 
 
Continuing Professional Education or similar courses taken by an employee in order to maintain 
licensing or other professional accreditation will not be eligible for payment under this policy 
unless the subject matter relates directly to the employee’s duties, even though the employee 
may be required to maintain such licensing or accreditation as a condition of employment with 
the City. 

 
The supervisor and the City Administrator are responsible for determining job-relatedness and 
approving or disapproving training and conference attendance. 

 
• Job-Related Meetings 

Attendance at professional meetings require the approval of the City Administrator.  Advance 
approval is required to ensure adequate department coverage. 

 
• Request for Participation in Training & Conferences 

The request for participation in a training session or conference must be submitted in writing to 
the employee’s supervisor on the appropriate form.  All requests must include an estimate of 
the total cost (training session, travel, meals, etc.) and a statement of how the education or 
training is related to the performance of the employee’s work responsibilities with the City. 

 
Requests under five hundred dollars and zero cents ($500.00) must be approved by the City 
Administrator.  Requests of five hundred dollars and zero cents ($500.00) or more must be 
approved by the City Council.  Documentation approving conference or training attendance will 
be provided to the employee with a copy placed in the employee’s personnel file. 

 
Payment information such as invoices, billing statements, etc., regarding the conference or 
training should be forwarded to the City Administrator for prompt payment. 

 
 

120-28 
 

266



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

• Out of State Travel 
Attendance at training or conferences out of state is approved only if the training or conference 
is not available locally.  All requests for out of state travel are reviewed for 
approval/disapproval by the City Council. 
 

• Compensation for Travel & Training Time 
Time spent traveling to and from, as well as time spent attending a training session or 
conference, will be compensated in accordance with the federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 
Travel and other related training expenses will be reimbursed subject to the employee providing 
necessary receipts and appropriate documentation. 

 
Subd. 3.  Memberships and Dues.  The purpose of memberships to various professional organizations must 
be directly related to the betterment of the services of the City.  Normally, one City membership per 
professional organization, as determined by the City Administrator is allowed, providing funds are available. 
 
Upon separation of employment, individual memberships remain with the City and are transferred to 
another employee by the supervisor. 
 
Subd. 4.  Travel & Meal Allowance.  If employees are required to travel outside of the area in performance 
of their duties as a City employee, they will receive reimbursement of expenses for meals, lodging and 
necessary expenses incurred.  However, the City will not reimburse employees for meals connected with 
training or meetings within City limits, unless the training or meeting is held as a breakfast, lunch or dinner 
meeting. 
 
Employees who find it necessary to use their private automobiles for City travel and who do not receive a 
car allowance will be reimbursed at the allowable IRS rate. 
 
Expenses for meals, including sales tax and gratuity, will be reimbursed according to this policy.  No 
reimbursement will be made for alcoholic beverages.  Meal expenses of thirty two dollars and zero cents 
($32.00) per day will be allowed. 
 
A full reimbursement, over the maximum defined, may be authorized if a lower cost meal is not available 
when attending banquets, training sessions, or meetings of professional organizations. 
 
Subd. 5.  Tuition Reimbursement.  The City of Hanover encourages the continued education and 
professional development of its staff by assisting employees with certain tuition expenses.  The City of 
Hanover will assist staff in paying for costs related to education provided that participation is approved in 
advance under the following criteria and procedures:  
 
• Job-related educational programs must be taken from accredited institutions of higher learning or 

vocational-technical schools.  The City Administrator determines whether or not a course is job-
related, with final approval/disapproval provided by the City Council prior to the beginning of any 
course.  

 
• The employee requesting tuition assistance has completed his or her probationary period, has been 

appointed as a regular full-time or part-time permanent city employee and employed at least two full 
years.  

 
• The subject matter of the course work is directly job related.  The responsibilities outlined in the 

position description and annual employee work and training goals will be considered in determining 
if the request is job related.  Courses taken by employee in order to maintain licensing or other 
professional accreditation will not be eligible under this section unless the subject matter relates 
directly to the employee’s duties, even though the employee may be required to maintain such 
licensing or accreditation as a condition of employment. 

 

120-29 
 

267



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

• The request for tuition assistance must be submitted in writing to the City Administrator.  Such 
requests should include the total dollar amount requested for assistance and a statement of how the 
education or training is related to the employee’s job.   

 
• Course work must be taken at an accredited institution of higher education.  An invoice for tuition 

must be submitted through the accounts payable process.  Tuition assistance is not available for the 
cost of books, supplies or equipment.  Following course completion, the employee must submit 
verification of a passing grade (C or better or a pass in a pass fail system).  Reimbursements will be 
prorated for part-time employees. 

 
• Course work must be scheduled in such a way as to avoid conflict with the employee’s normal 

workday schedule.   If they employee cannot avoid conflict and must leave work for class they must 
take vacation or sick time. 

 
Employees who receive tuition reimbursement, and who do not complete at least three (3) years of 
employment with the City after such reimbursement, will be required to repay the reimbursement on a pro-
rated basis for the three (3) years.  
 
• Up to 12 months after course ends, full repayment 
• 12 to 18 months after course ends, 75% repayment 
• 18 to 24 months after course ends, 50% repayment 
• 24 to 36 months after course ends, 25% repayment 
• After 36 months – no repayment 

 
Tuition reimbursement for an individual employee will not exceed $1,500 per year. 
 
If the employee is involuntarily terminated by the City during the three years, then the employee will not be 
required to reimburse any portion of the tuition reimbursement paid to them by the City, unless the 
termination is for cause. 
 
 
120.20 OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 
 
The potential for conflicts of interest is lessened when individuals employed by the City of Hanover regard 
the City as their primary employment responsibility.  All outside employment is to be reported to the City 
Administrator.  Any City employee accepting employment in an outside position that is determined by the 
City Administrator to be in conflict with the employee’s City job will be required to resign from the outside 
employment or may be subject to discipline up to and including termination from employment with the City. 
 
For the purpose of this policy, outside employment refers to any non-City employment or consulting work 
for which an employee receives compensation, except for compensation received in conjunction with 
military service or holding a political office or an appointment to a government board or commission that is 
compatible with City employment.  The following is to be considered when determining if outside 
employment is acceptable: 

• Outside employment must not interfere with a full-time employee’s availability during the City’s 
regular hours of operation or with a part-time employee’s regular work schedule. 

 
• Outside employment must not interfere with the employee’s ability to fulfill the essential 

requirements of his/her position. 
 

• The employee must not use City equipment, resources or staff in the course of the outside 
employment. 

 
• The employee must not violate any City personnel policies as a result of outside employment. 

 

120-30 
 

268



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

• The employee must not receive compensation from another business, individual or employer 
for services performed during hours for which he/she is also being compensated by the City.  
Work performed for others while on approved vacation or compensatory time is not a violation 
of policy unless that work creates an actual conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict 
of interest. 

 
• No employee will work for another business, individual or employer, or for his/her own business, 

while using paid sick leave from the City for those same hours. 
 

• Departments may establish more specific policies as appropriate, subject to the approval of the 
City Administrator. 

 
City employees are not permitted to accept outside employment that creates an actual conflict of interest 
or the appearance of or the potential for a conflict with the development, administration or implementation 
of policies, programs, services or any other operational aspect of the City. 
 
 
120.21 DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 
 
In accordance with Federal Law, the City of Hanover has adopted the following policy on drugs in the 
workplace: 
 

A. Employees are expected and required to report to work on time and in appropriate mental 
and physical condition.  It is the City’s intent and obligation to provide a drug-free, safe and 
secure work environment. 

 
B. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, possession, or use of a controlled substance on 

City property or while conducting City business is absolutely prohibited.  Violations of this 
policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination, and may have legal 
consequences. 

 
C. The City recognizes drug abuse as a potential health, safety, and security problem.  

Employees needing help in dealing with such problems are encouraged to use their health 
insurance plans, as appropriate. 

 
D. Employees must, as a condition of employment, abide by the terms of this policy and must 

report any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations occurring on or off work 
premises while conducting City business.  A report of the conviction must be made within 
five (5) days after the conviction as required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. 

 
E. City employees who drive and/or operate equipment under a commercial driver’s license 

(CDL) are subject, by law, to specific drug and alcohol testing requirements.  Please 
reference Chapter 500, Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy, of the Hanover Policy Manual, for 
the requirements under this provision.   

 
F. All new employees will undergo an initial drug screening as a condition of employment. 

 
 
120.22 SAFETY POLICY 
 
Subd. 1.  Policy.  The health and safety of each employee of the City and the prevention of occupational 
injuries and illnesses are of primary importance to the City.  To the greatest degree possible, management 
will maintain an environment free from unnecessary hazards and will establish safety policies and 
procedures for each department.  Adherence to these policies is the responsibility of each employee.  
Overall administration of this policy is the responsibility of each supervisor.  Please reference Chapter 200, 
Safety Policy, of the Hanover Policy Manual for additional requirements under this provision. 

120-31 
 

269



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
Subd. 2.  Reporting Accidents and Illnesses.  Both Minnesota Worker’s Compensation laws and the state 
and federal Occupational Safety and Health Acts require that all on the job injuries and illnesses be reported 
as soon as possible by the employee, or on behalf of the injured or ill employee, to his/her supervisor.  The 
employee’s immediate supervisor is required to complete a First Report of Injury and any other forms that 
may be necessary related to an injury or illness on the job. 
 
Subd. 3.  Safety Equipment/Gear.  Where safety equipment is required by federal, state, or local rules and 
regulations, it is a condition of employment that such equipment be worn by the employee. 
 
Subd. 4.  Unsafe Behavior.  Supervisors are authorized to send an employee home immediately when the 
employee’s behavior violates the City’s personnel policies, department policies, or creates a potential health 
or safety issue for the employee or others. 
 
 
120.23 CITY DRIVING POLICY 
 
This policy applies to all employees who drive a vehicle on city business at least once per month, whether 
driving a city-owned vehicle or their own personal vehicle.  It also applies to employees who drive less 
frequently but whose ability to drive is essential to their job due to the emergency nature of the job.  The 
City expects all employees who are required to drive as part of their job to drive safely and legally while on 
City business and to maintain a good driving record. 
 
The City will examine driving records once per year for all employees who are covered by this policy to 
determine compliance with this policy.  Employees who lose their driver’s license or receive restrictions on 
their license are required to notify their immediate supervisor on the first work day after any temporary, 
pending or permanent action is taken on their license and to keep their supervisor informed of any changes 
thereafter. 
 
The City will determine appropriate action on a case-by-case basis. 
 
 
120.24 ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 
 
Subd. 1.  Introduction.  The City of Hanover provides employees with access to and use of a variety of 
electronic communications resources.  These resources are provided to employees in an effort to allow 
them to be more efficient, productive and have access to information that is necessary for them to carry out 
their responsibilities as an employee of the City. Use of the City's electronic communications resources in 
violation of the electronic communications resources policy may lead to discipline, up to and including 
termination of employment.   
 
Subd. 2.  Scope of Coverage/Application.  This policy applies to all employees (regular, full-time, seasonal, 
part -time, temporary), contractors, volunteers, interns, employees of other local or state unit of government 
working with the City of Hanover, elected officials, and other individuals who have been granted access to 
and use of the City's electronic communications resources. 
 
Subd. 3.  Definitions.  For the purpose of this policy, the following definitions apply: 
 

Electronic communications resources are all equipment and software that retain, transmit, copy, 
modify, analyze or process information in any form.  Electronic communications resources include, 
but are not limited to, the City's telephone system, answering machine, desktop and laptop 
computers, printers, scanners, modems, facsimile (fax) machines, databases, electronic mail (e-
mail) systems and files, pagers, internet access, internet browsers, computer applications, utilities 
and operating systems.   
 

120-32 
 

270



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

The Internet is a system comprised of, but not limited to, several services which may include the 
World Wide Web (www), Gopher, File Transfer Protocol (FTP), e-mail, Internet relay chat and 
telnet, and which is generally reached by City employees via the City's computer system.   
 
Online services include, but are not limited to, any computer network or bulletin board, whether 
commercial or private, which can be reached via the City's computer system or via modem.  
Services which are covered under this definition include, but are not limited to, CompuServe, 
America Online, MSN, Yahoo!, Google, and any bulletin board systems, local or otherwise.   

 
Subd. 4.  Use of City's Electronic Communications Resources. 
 

Business Use -- The City's electronic communications resources are City property and intended 
for City business.  These resources are not to be used for employee personal gain or to support or 
advocate for non-City related business or purposes.  All use of City electronic communication 
resources is subject to management access pursuant to this policy.   
 
Incidental and occasional personal use of electronic communications resources is permitted if it 
does not interfere with the use of equipment for City purposes and is not excessive, or does not 
unduly interfere with an employee's work time, job activities, or the job activities of other employees.  
Such use and any messages or data created or accessed will be treated no differently from other 
messages or data.  If the City's electronic communications resources are used for personal use, 
the employee assumes personal responsibility for the additional cost of any such personal use and 
will pay any cost incurred for such use (for example:  telephone long distance charges or cellular 
phone time charges).  The City reserves the right to reduce or eliminate any personal uses by an 
employee on a case - by - case basis, or take disciplinary action as needed or required.   
 
Unacceptable Use -- Unacceptable uses of the City's electronic communications resources 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
a. To transmit threatening, abusive, obscene, offensive, lewd, profane or harassing 

material or communications. 
 
b. To transmit, receive, access, upload, download, or distribute obscene, 

pornographic, abusive, or sexually explicit materials or language or any material 
which suggests any lewd or lascivious act. 

 
c. Disruption of network services, such as distributing computer viruses. 

 
d. Sending messages likely to result in the loss of recipients' work or systems, and 

any other types of use that could cause congestion of the computer system, or 
otherwise interfere with the work of others. 

 
e. Use of someone else's identity and/or password for access to information without 

proper authorization. 
 

f. Misrepresenting one's identity or affiliation in any communications. 
 

g. Attempt to evade, disable, or otherwise bypass password or other security 
provisions of systems on the computer. 

 
h. Reproduction or distribution of copyrighted materials without proper authorization. 

 
i. For commercial ventures, personal gains, religious or political causes, or other 

non-job-related solicitations. 
 

j. To engage in any form of gambling via communications resources. 

120-33 
 

271



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
k. To advocate or access information advocating any type of unlawful violence, 

vandalism, or illegal activity. 
 

l. To secure access to any form of City electronic communications resources without 
the authorization of the Administrator or designee. 

 
m. Any use of City electronic communications resources for messages that are, or 

could reasonably be considered, offensive to another on the basis of race, sex, 
age, sexual orientation, religious or political beliefs, national origin, marital status, 
public assistance status or disability.   

 
Subd. 5.  Privacy.  The City reserves the right, as is reasonably necessary, to search, review, audit, 
intercept, or access any employee's use of electronic communications resources. All materials created, 
developed, composed, generated, stored, sent or received using City electronic resources will remain the 
property of the City of Hanover. 
 
The use of e-mail is not private.  Messages sent via e-mail are subject to monitoring, interception, and 
forwarding which is beyond the control of the person sending the message.  Although e-mail messages 
may appear to the user to have been deleted, the message or the data that it contained may nevertheless 
continue to exist on the computer system in which the e-mail system operates.  Stored e-mail messages 
and other computerized data are discoverable documents, which may be exchanged in litigation.  The 
content of e-mail messages may subject the sender to civil liability, discipline and criminal sanctions.  
 
Users should be aware that even though they may have a confidential password to access e-mail, this does 
not suggest that the e-mail is the property right of the employee. The City retains the right to, and shall 
maintain the ability to, access any employee's e-mail or other electronic data on devices.  An employee 
assigned a computer access account is responsible for all usage of that resource.  Users should not share 
their passwords with anyone other than their supervisor and must take all reasonable precautions for 
password protection and maintenance.   
 
The contents of electronic data sent by, between, and/or to individuals covered by this policy may be 
disclosed within or outside the City without the permission of the individual at any time for any purpose 
deemed necessary by the City, subject to any limitations imposed by law, including but not limited to the 
Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.  Under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, the 
public has broad access to government records.  Government records include data that is in the possession 
of the government "regardless of its physical form, storage media, or conditions of use."  Electronic data, 
including e-mail messages, is treated as government records subject to data practices requests.   
 
Employees who resign, are terminated, laid off, suspended, or otherwise cease (permanently or 
temporarily) their employment with the City of Hanover have no right to the contents of their e-mail 
messages or any other data or files existing on the computer system, and shall not be allowed access to 
the computer system.  Supervisors may access an employee's e-mail or any other date or files existing on 
the computer system if employees are on leave of absence, vacation or otherwise absent, or at any other 
time that the supervisor deems necessary for the City's business purposes.   
 
Subd. 6.  Security Measures.  The user must scan application executables (.exe) or data files from all 
outside sources, including the Internet, with anti-virus software before first use.   
 
Supervisors may review the usage of the City's electronic communications resources, usage of the City's 
access to the Internet or online services and data or files stored on the computer system by employees 
they supervise to determine whether there have been any breaches of security, violations of City policy or 
policies, or other violation of duty on the part of the employee. 
 

120-34 
 

272



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

The City, at its discretion, may also use computer programs that monitor the usage of and storage of date 
or files on the City's electronic communications resources and the City's access to the Internet and other 
Online services, for purposes of assuring system security and compliance with City policies.   
 
Subd. 7.  Software Use.  Only software purchased by or licensed to the City can be installed on City 
computers.  The use of this software must be in compliance with the license agreement and cannot be 
copied to multiple computers, unless so permitted by the licensor.  Employee-owned software, shareware, 
or freeware can only be installed on city computers with prior authorization of the City Administrator.   
 
Subd. 8.  Internet Use.  
 

Business Use -- The City of Hanover provides certain employees with access to and use of the 
Internet if necessary for business purposes.  All of the provisions of this policy apply to Internet 
use.  Internet resources are provided to employees in an effort to allow them to be more efficient, 
productive, and to have access to information that is necessary for them to carry out their 
responsibilities as an employee of the City.  Employees are expected and required to use the 
Internet in a manner consistent with their position and work responsibilities with the City.   
 
Access -- Approval by the City Administrator is required to acquire access to the Internet and/or 
Online services.  
 
Monitoring Use -- Employees should be aware that it is possible to track Internet sites visited by 
a particular workstation.  The City reserves the right to access, monitor, and disclose all Internet 
and online services for any purpose not specifically prohibited by statute or regulation that have 
been accessed by a City employee.  The City retains the right to keep, retrieve, and monitor all 
access to Internet or online service activity by any City employee.  Restrictions may be placed on 
use of the Internet or online services to protect the City and its resources.  Inappropriate use of the 
City's Internet resources may result in discipline up to and including discharge of employment.  

 
Subd. 9.  Laptop/Portable Computer Use.  It is the responsibility of the employee using the City's laptop 
computer or other portable equipment to keep the equipment in a safe environment, protected to the extent 
possible from theft or damage.  All data collected, stored, processed, or disseminated by City employees 
on portable computer equipment owned by the City is governed by the Data Practices Act.  Additional 
software or programs may not be loaded on portable computers without prior authorization from the City 
Administrator or designee.  Any copying of software on portable computers for personal use is prohibited.  
Any non-business use of portable computers is prohibited.  Any use of portable computers by unauthorized 
persons is prohibited.  Employees must immediately notify the Administrator if portable computers are 
damaged or stolen.   
 
Subd. 10.  Computer Use.  Computers are provided to employees to be used as tools to help perform their 
job responsibilities.  This equipment belongs to the City and has the same restrictions as set forth in Section 
100.22, subd. 9 for laptop and portable computers.    
 
Subd. 11.  Purchasing.  Purchasing of data processing hardware and software shall be processed through 
the City Administrator for review based on need and appropriateness, procurement of quotations, and 
processing for approval by the City Council, with all such purchases subject to the City's purchasing policy.   
 
Subd. 12.  Telephone and Fax Machine Usage.  In addition to the provisions above, the following policies 
apply: 

 
Business use -- The City's telephone system and equipment are designed for City business use.   
 
Personal calls -- The City does understand that employees occasionally need to use the City 
phone system to make or receive personal phone calls.  The employee should attempt to make 
and receive personal phone calls during non-working hours (breaks or lunch).  Excessive use of 
the City phone system for personal calls is prohibited and may lead to disciplinary action. 

120-35 
 

273



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
Long distance personal phone calls -- Employees who find it necessary to make a personal long 
distance call must reimburse the City for the call within 60 days of making the call.  It is the 
employee's responsibility to notify the Administrator or designee of the date and time of the call and 
request cost information of any personal long distance calls made, as necessary.   
 
Personal use of fax machines -- Employees shall reimburse the City at the designated rate set 
for the use of fax machines.  Reimbursement shall be made at the time of use.   

 
Subd. 13.  Penalties.  Any violations of this policy may result in discipline in accordance with the City of 
Hanover Personnel Policy and/or other applicable rules.  Violations may be grounds for discipline up to and 
including dismissal.  Violations of this policy may be referred for criminal prosecution if there is cause to 
believe the activity complained of constitutes a crime.   
 
120.25 OFFICIALS UNDER WORKERS COMPENSATION ACT 
 
Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 176.011, subd. 9, the elected officials of the City and those 
municipal officers appointed for a regular term of office or to complete the unexpired portion of a regular 
term of office are hereby included in the coverage of the Minnesota Worker’s Compensation Act. 
 
120.26 EMERGENCY CLOSING POLICY 
 
Subd. 1 Purpose.  The City recognizes that certain situations may arise as a result of weather conditions 
and other emergency events which result in the closure of certain city facilities.  This policy sets forth the 
conditions, process, and impact on the employee’s affected by these situations. 
 
Subd. 2 Procedure.  It is the City’s policy to continue to provide appropriate levels of services to the 
community during periods of inclement weather or emergencies.  The City will make all attempts to keep 
its facilities open during normal business hours even though an emergency may exist.  The City 
acknowledges that there may be adverse weather or other emergency conditions (Emergencies) in which 
employees may need to be excused from work.  The City recognizes that the safety of its employees and 
their dependents is very important.  The following Emergency Closing Policy applies to all employees 
except those employees in departments that are expected to remain open and on duty during such 
emergencies. 

 
A. In the event of an emergency, the City Administrator and/or Mayor may declare a State of 

Emergency.  The City Administrator will communicate the declaration of a State of 
Emergency to all department heads.  The City Administrator, or his/her designee, will post a 
notice of the State of Emergency on the door of City Hall, update the mail greeting on the 
City’s phone system, e-mail the members of the City Council informing them of the State of 
Emergency, and post notice on the City’s official website. 

 
B. When a State of Emergency is declared, each employee may determine whether he/she will 

remain at work or utilize appropriate leave.  If an employee determines that his/her safety or 
the safety of his/her dependents may be jeopardized if the employee reports to work or if at 
work, remains on duty, the employee may request authorized emergency leave.  An 
employee with authorized emergency leave must utilize vacation or compensatory time for 
the time away from work.  If the employee does not have vacation or compensatory time, the 
emergency leave will be unpaid. 

 
120.27 AUTHORITY 
 
This policy shall be in full force and effect from the date of its adoption by resolution of the City Council.  
Changes can be made at any time at the discretion of the Council by resolution setting forth the changes 
to be made.  The City Administrator and City Council are responsible for interpretation of these policies and 
shall have final decision-making authority on any disputes as to the interpretation of these policies. 

120-36 
 

274



 

 

Chapter 120 – Personnel Policy 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLAN

120-37 
 

275



 

RECEIPT FOR EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
 
     I acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City of Hanover’s Employee Handbook.  I agree to 
read it thoroughly, including the statements in the foreword describing the purpose and effect of the 
Handbook.  I agree that if there is any policy or provision in the Handbook that I do not understand, I will 
seek clarification from the Human Resources Department.  I understand that the City of Hanover is an "at 
will" employer and as such employment with the City is not for a fixed term or definite period and may be 
terminated at the will of either party, with or without cause, and without prior notice.  No supervisor or     
other representative of the City has the authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any 
specified period of time, or to make any agreement contrary to the above. In addition, I understand that 
this Handbook states the City of Hanover’s policies and practices in effect on the date of publication.  I 
understand that nothing contained in the Handbook may be construed as creating a promise of future 
benefits or a binding contract with the City for benefits or for any other purpose.  I also understand that 
these policies and procedures are continually evaluated and may be amended, modified or terminated at 
any time. 
 
     Please sign and date this receipt and return it to the Human Resources Department. 
 
 
Date: _______________________________ 
 
 
Signature: ___________________________ 
 
 
Print Name: __________________________ 
 

 
276


	ADPF6BF.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  September 10, 2015
	Re:  Review of September 15, 2015 City Council Agenda

	09-15-15 Claims.pdf
	09-15-15 Batch Report
	09-15-15 Cons
	09-15-15 Payroll
	09-15-15 Paid Register
	09-15-15 Ded Ben
	09-15-15 Pera
	09-15-15 HSA

	09-15-15 Cash Balance
	09-15-15 Rev
	09-15-15 Exp

	Res 09-15-15-62 - Approving 2016 Preliminary Budget & Levy.pdf
	09-15-15-62 - Copy of 2016 Preliminary Budget - DRAFT 3.pdf
	Budget Summary
	Gen. Fund Rev.
	Gen. Fund Exp.
	FD Contract
	Debt Service
	Final Levy
	EDA
	Final EDA Levy
	Tax Rate


	Salary Study 2015.pdf
	Salary comps
	Benefits
	Annandale
	Albany
	Becker
	Clearwater
	CORCORAN
	Dayton
	Greenfield
	Hamel-Medina
	Watertown
	Wayzata

	ADPB5D0.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  September 10, 2015
	Re:  Review of September 15, 2015 City Council Agenda




